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Integrity & Innovative
We treat our colleagues, customers and business 
partners with the highest degree of fairness and trust
We strive to develop new products & services and 
continuously improve the way we do business

Motivated 

We work together as a high 
performing team and deliver 
what we promised

Understanding 
We listen to our customers to 
understand and meet their needs

Responsible & Reliable
We operate in a safe, environmentally responsible and compliant manner in all our operations

We commit to deliver quality products and services to meet customers’ requirements
We take pride in fulfilling our responsibilities and performance

Flexible & Friendly
We are dedicated to support 
each other as a team and will 
adapt to changing conditions

Our values serve as guidelines for our actions, decisions and 
behaviours in all our dealings

Our Values

Dedicated to Deliver Innovative, High Quality, 
Competitive and Value Added Products & Services

Our Mission
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Targeting international market and maintaining close 
collaboration with global business partners, Emico has 
established itself as an export orientated corporation 
through more than 40 years of evolvement in the 
industry. The roadmap in a shape of a trophy signifies 
Emico’s ambition to export its products and services 
to every corner of the world.

Vision for Globalisation
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE

Emico Penang Sdn Bhd 100%

Emico Creative Design Sdn Bhd 100%

Emico Tools Sdn Bhd 100%

Emico Asia Sdn Bhd 100%

Emico Newk Sdn Bhd 100%

Emico Melaka Sdn Bhd

* Dormant/Inactive

51%

Standard Trend Apparel 
Industries Sdn Bhd 53.3%

Emico Development Sdn Bhd100%

Emico Capital Sdn Bhd100%

Mercu Tanah Langkawi Sdn Bhd71%

NEB Pacific Sdn Bhd60%

Unic Builders Sdn Bhd60%

NEB Development Berhad60%

Operasi Tembaga Sdn Bhd49.7%

100%Emico Marketing Sdn Bhd

100%Emico Metalizing Sdn Bhd

100%Emico Co. Ltd.

PKB - Operasi Tembaga Sdn Bhd39.8%

EMICO HOLDINGS BERHAD
(230326-D)

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT 
& INVESTMENT

MANUFACTURING

TRADING

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*
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FY2013
RM’000

FY2014
RM’000

FY2015
RM’000

FY2016
RM’000

FY2017
RM’000

Revenue  77,650  69,261  75,435  80,018  70,284 
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax  (2,351)  103  2,618  5,871  2,730 
Share Capital  95,927  95,927  95,927  95,927  *17,329 
Net Assets  31,850  32,178  36,294  40,947  42,541 
Net Assets Per Share (SEN)  0.33  0.34  0.37  0.43  0.44 
Net Earnings Per Share (SEN)  (2.06)  0.34  1.87  3.82  1.67 

Group Five Year Financial Highlights

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax Net Earnings Per Share (SEN)

Revenue Net Assets

Note: * Cancellation of RM0.90 of the par value of each ordinary shares of RM1.00 each completed on 17 March 2017
             (Refer to Page 13 - Capital Structure)
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Product Offerings
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

FROM LEFT TO RIGHT

LIM TEIK HIAN
Executive Chairman

JIMMY ONG CHIN KENG
Managing Director

LIM TECK CHYE
Deputy Managing Director

NG CHEE KONG
Independent and Non-Executive Director

WONG SEW YUN
Independent and Non-Executive Director

WONG THAI SUN
Independent and Non-Executive Director
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PROFILE (Cont’d)

Mr Lim Teik Hian, a Malaysian aged 50 was appointed to the Board 
on 16 February 1996. He has a Diploma in Business Administration 
from Australia Business College, Melbourne, Australia. Upon 
graduation, he joined the Company in 1989 as the Marketing 
Manager and was responsible for the development of domestic 
market for Emico. At a later stage, he was involved in the general 
management of the manufacturing operations and was instrumental 
in the commissioning of modern manufacturing facilities for Emico 
Group. He was re-designated as Executive Chairman on 24 March 
2009. He and his younger brother, Mr Lim Teck Chye sits on the 
Board of the Company as Deputy Managing Director. Other than as 
disclosed in the related party transactions in Note 34 of the Financial 
Statements, he has no other conflict of interest. 

Mr Lim has not been convicted of any offence in the past 10 years 
and has attended all Board meetings held during the financial year.

Mr Jimmy Ong Chin Keng, a Malaysian aged 54 was appointed to 
the Board on 16 February 1996. He is a Chartered Accountant and 
holds a professional qualification from the Malaysian Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants and is a member of Malaysian Institute 
of Accountants. He joined Emico Group in February 1993 as the 
Financial Controller and rose to the rank of Finance Director in 1996 
and re-designated as Managing Director on 23 January 2009. Mr 
Ong has an extensive experience and knowledge in the field of 
accounting, finance, corporate finance, manufacturing and property 
development. Prior to his engagement in Emico, he served in two 
international accounting firms namely PriceWaterhouseCoopers and 
KPMG for a total of 10 years. Mr Ong has no family relationship 
with any Director/Substantial shareholders. He is a member of 
Remuneration and Risk Management Committees. He also sits 
on the Board of several private limited companies. Other than as 
disclosed in the related party transactions in Note 34 of the Financial 
Statements, he has no other conflict of interest. 

Mr Ong was elected as President of Lions Club of George Town 
(2013-2014) and served as Region Chairperson for Lions Clubs 
International District 308B2 (2016-2017) and also elected as Vice-
Chairman of Federation of Malaysian Manufacturers, Penang Branch 
since 2012. He is also appointed as a committee member of Division 
of Industry and Community Network, USM. 

Mr Ong has not been convicted of any offence in the past 10 years 
and has attended all Board meetings held during the financial year.

LIM TEIK HIAN
Executive Chairman

JIMMY ONG CHIN KENG
Managing Director
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Lim Teck Chye, a Malaysian aged 43, was appointed to the Board of 
the Company on 11 May 2004 and redesignated as Deputy Managing 
Director on 1 June 2017.

Mr Lim is a professional engineer. He graduated with a Bachelor 
of Science in Engineering and a Master Degree in Industrial 
Engineering from University of Toledo, Ohio, USA. Upon graduation 
in 1997, he joined Northern Elevator Manufacturing Sdn Bhd as a 
Marketing Manager. In mid-1998, he was seconded abroad to set 
up an elevator manufacturing plant in Fujian, China and appointed 
as the Managing Director of Fuji-Sino Elevators (Fujian) Co., Ltd. In 
1999, he was appointed to the Board of Northern Elevator Berhad 
as the Executive Director overseeing the operation of the company 
in the areas of cost reduction and productivity improvement. He 
served as the Regional Sourcing Director (South East Asia) and 
Service Director of KONE Elevator Sdn. Bhd from Year 2005 to 2011. 
Mr Lim has an extensive experience and knowledge in the field of 
manufacturing, strategic sourcing and customer service. He is a 
member of the Risk Management Committee and sits on the Board 
of several private limited companies. 

He and his brother, Mr Lim Teik Hian sits on the Board of the Company 
as Deputy Managing Director and Executive Chairman respectively. 
Other than as disclosed in the related party transactions in Note 34 
of the Financial Statements, he has no other conflict of interest. Mr 
Lim has not been convicted of any offence in the past 10 years and 
has attended 4 out of 5 Board meetings held during the financial 
year.

Mr Ng Chee Kong, a Malaysian aged 74 is an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company. He was appointed to the 
Board on 24 May 1999 and is a member of the Audit Committee. 
He also sits as the Chairman of the Nominating and Remuneration 
Committees. He received his early education in Penang and joined 
the banking profession with a major local bank until his retirement 36 
years later. During his tenure with the bank, he obtained a Diploma 
in Marketing & Selling Bank Services conferred by The International 
Management Centres, Buckingham, England. 

Mr Ng has not been convicted of any offence in the past 10 years 
and has attended 4 out of 5 Board meetings held during the financial 
year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PROFILE (Cont’d)

LIM TECK CHYE
Deputy Managing Director

NG CHEE KONG
Independent and Non-Executive Director
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Mr Wong Sew Yun, a Malaysian aged 61 was appointed to the Board 
on 14 January 1995. He has been involved in various businesses 
for more than 30 years. He owns a transportation company plying 
between East Malaysia, West Malaysia and Indonesia. He is also 
involved in ceramic wares business and sits on the Board of several 
private limited companies. He is a member of the Audit and 
Nominating Committees.

Mr Wong has not been convicted of any offence in the past 10 
years and has attended 4 out of 5 Board meetings held during the 
financial year.

Mr Wong Thai Sun, a Malaysian aged 62 was appointed to the 
Board on 26 December 2008. He holds a Bachelor of Economics 
and Accountancy from Australia National University. He is a 
member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants and the Certified 
Public Accountants, Australia. He has public practice experience 
in accountancy for over 20 years in Malaysia and overseas. He is 
currently having his own public practice firm known as Wong Thai 
Sun & Associates. He also sits on the Board of Directors of the 
D’Nonce Techonology Bhd and Suiwah Corporation Bhd. He sits as 
a Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management Committees. He is 
also a member of Nominating and Remuneration Committees.

Mr Wong has not been convicted of any offence in the past 10 years 
and has attended all Board meetings held during the financial year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PROFILE (Cont’d)

WONG SEW YUN
Independent and Non-Executive Director 

WONG THAI SUN
Independent and Non-Executive Director
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Dear Valued Shareholders, 

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

FY2017 has been a challenging year due to the continuing 
slowdown in the world economy and the United Kingdom 
voted to exit the European Union. Against such background, 
I’m pleased to announce that Emico Group has performed 
reasonably well with a sales turnover of RM70.28mil and a 
profit before tax of RM2.73mil. 

During the year, Emico has undertaken a corporate exercise 
to reduce the par value of ordinary share of RM1.00 each 
to RM0.10 each by way of cancellation of RM0.90 of the 
par value. Thus, the accumulated losses of the Company 
were fully set off from the credit arising from the par value 
reduction exercise.

We are confident that the manufacturing segment will 
continue to grow in FY2018. We have undertaken to 
automate our manufacturing facility in stages to increase 
our production capacity and efficiency. We will continue to 
leverage on our strengths to further develop our businesses 
locally and internationally in order to maintain our market 
position.

The Board of Directors (“Board”) is dedicated to ensuring 
governance frameworks are effective and drive Group 

On behalf of the Board of 

Directors, it gives me great 

pleasure to present the 

Annual Report of Emico 

Holdings Berhad for the 

financial year ended 31 March 

2017 (“FY2017”).

performance. To enhance efficiency, the Board has 
entrusted the tasks to achieve its goals to several of the sub-
committees reporting to it. These are the Audit Committee, 
Risk Management Committee, Remuneration Committee 
and Nominating Committee.

On behalf of the Board, I wish to thank the management and 
employees of Emico Group for their commitment, dedication 
and contribution throughout the year. On a personal note, 
my appreciation goes to my fellow board members for their 
guidance, invaluable advice and support. 

I would like to convey my gratitude to all of our valued 
customers for their unwavering support and continued trust 
in us. Furthermore, my sincere thanks to the dedicated 
suppliers who continue to support us all these years.

Lastly, I would like to record my appreciation to the 
government agencies and authorities, financial institutions 
and our valued shareholders, for the continuous support and 
confidence in us.

Lim Teik Hian
Executive Chairman
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Company Profile

The Group is involved in manufacturing and trading of trophy, souvenir and medal products, contract manufacturing, trading 
of home furnishing and household products and property development.

The Group has two manufacturing facilities located in Bayan Lepas Industrial Area, Penang. The property development 
projects are located in Sungai Petani and Langkawi, Kedah.

Principal Activities of the Group

•	 Manufacturing and trading of trophy products
•	 Contract manufacturing of medical consumable products, marine engineering products and lighting accessories 
•	 Trading of home furnishing and household products 
•	 Property development

Highlight of Group Financial Performance for the Past 5 years	

Segmental Revenue 
by Division

2013
RM’000

% 2014
RM’000

% 2015
RM’000

% 2016
RM’000

% 2017
RM’000

%

Consumable Products Segment
-	 Trophy 22,506 29 25,081 36 27,520 36 31,781 40 34,592 49
-	 Contract Manufacturing 11,652 15 13,498 20 14,264 19 15,283 19 18,844 27
-	 Trading 18,510 24 14,985 21 18,712 25 14,674 18 4,931 7

Property Development Segment 24,982 32 15,697 23 14,939 20 18,280 23 11,917 17
Total Group Revenue 77,650 100 69,261 100 75,435 100 80,018 100 70,284 100

Revenue Distribution by Key 
Market

2013
RM’000

% 2014
RM’000

% 2015
RM’000

% 2016
RM’000

% 2017
RM’000

%

Europe 35,179 45 33,987 49 39,090 52 33,963 42 31,483 45
Other countries 3,108 4 4,534 7 6,244 8 9,262 12 9,616 14
Total Exports 38,287 49 38,521 56 45,334 60 43,225 54 41,099 59
Malaysia 39,363 51 30,740 44 30,101 40 36,793 46 29,185 41
Total Group Revenue 77,650 100 69,261 100 75,435 100 80,018 100 70,284 100

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 
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	 The domestic market achieved a 10% growth in 
revenue despite the weak market sentiment. Our 
participation in local gift fairs and major sporting 
events has further boosted our brand awareness and 
contributed positively to our results.

ii.	 Contract Manufacturing

	 The contract manufacturing division achieved a 
growth of 23% from RM15.28mil in FY2016 to 
RM18.84mil in FY2017. Our major customer in 
medical consumable products has been a partner 
of Emico for a long time, extending over 15 years 
of partnership as Emico continues to consistently 
meet their key criterion on quality, timely delivery 
and reasonable commercial terms. In addition, we 
have also received a substantial increase in orders 
from marine engineering and lighting accessories 
products during the year.

b.	 Trading of Home Furnishing and Household Products

	 The trading division posted a significant drop in revenue 
from RM14.67mil in FY2016 to RM4.93mil in FY2017. 
The decrease in revenue was due to the closing down of 
one of its major customers in United Kingdom during the 
last quarter of FY2016.  

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS

Group Revenue

For the current financial year (“FY2017”) under review, the 
Group posted a revenue of RM70.28mil as compared to 
RM80.02mil in the last financial year (“FY2016”). 

CONSUMABLE PRODUCTS SEGMENT

a.	 Manufacturing of Consumable Products

i.	 Trophy 

	 The trophy division posted a higher revenue of 
RM34.59mil in FY2017 increasing by 8.8% from 
RM31.78mil in FY2016. The trophy division remained 
as an important contributor to our Group total 
revenue, recording an increase of 34.9% over the 
past 5 years.

 
	 The export of trophy products has continued to 

record a growth of 8% in revenue for FY2017.  
Currently, we have exported to more than 45 
countries worldwide which made Emico one of 
the largest plastic trophy manufacturers in the 
world.  Our close collaboration with customers in 
product design and development have enabled us 
to keep abreast with the latest trend and demand 
of the market and has enhanced our position as 
the preferred trophy manufacturer. The weakening 
of Ringgit during the year has also benefited the 
export business due to higher exchange translation.  

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (Cont’d)

Highlight of Group Financial Performance for the Past 5 years	 (Cont’d)

2013
RM’000

2014
RM’000

2015
RM’000

2016
RM’000

2017
RM’000

Revenue       77,650       69,261       75,435       80,018       70,284 

Profit before Interest & tax           (426)            753         3,180         6,383         3,254 

Finance Cost         1,925            650            562            513            524 

Net Profit        (2,286)              27         1,792         4,046         1,350 

Shareholder’s Equity       31,850       32,178       36,294       40,947       42,541 

Total Assets       83,323       76,823       85,517       91,566       80,620 

Borrowings         3,365         9,801         9,204       11,579         8,868 

Share Capital       95,926       95,926       95,926       95,926         *17,329 

Net Assets       31,850       32,178       36,294       40,947       42,541 
Debts/Equity (%)         10.57         30.46         25.36         28.28         20.85 

Net Assets Per Share (Sen)           0.33           0.34           0.38           0.43           0.44 

Earnings Per Share (Sen)          (2.06)           0.34           1.87           3.82           1.67 

(Note * - Please refer to the note on Capital Structure below)
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Dividend

The Board of Directors does not recommend any payment of 
dividend for the financial year ended 31 March 2017.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (Cont’d)

Property Development segment

The property development segment posted a lower revenue 
of RM11.92mil in FY2017 as compared to RM18.28mil in 
FY2016. The decline in revenue was mainly due to the adverse 
economic sentiment as a result of inflationary pressure on cost 
of living upon the implementation of GST and weakening of 
Ringgit.  In addition, the financial institution still continue to 
be stringent and cautious in approving housing loan.

Group Profit Before Tax

The Group recorded a profit before tax (“PBT”) of RM2.73mil 
for FY2017 as compared to RM5.87mil for FY2016.  The strong 
performance from manufacturing of consumable products  
division posted a higher PBT of RM3.77mil for FY2017 as 
compared to RM3.38mil in FY2016. However, there’s a 
decline in PBT for property development segment which 
posted RM0.55mil in FY2017 as compared to RM2.93mil 
in FY2016. In addition, our trading division posted a loss 
before tax of RM0.48mil for FY2017 as compared to PBT of 
RM0.42mil in FY2016.

EQUITY AND LIABILITY

Capital Structure

On 17 March 2017, the Company has lodged the office 
copy of the sealed Court Order from the High Court to 
the Companies Commission of Malaysia which marked the 
completion of the share capital reduction exercise in which 
the share capital of the Company consisting of 95,926,521 
shares of RM1.00 ordinary share each was reduced to 
95,926,521 shares of RM0.10 ordinary share each by way 
of cancellation of RM0.90 of the par value of each ordinary 
share of RM1.00 each in the Company. 

The excess premium of RM86.33mil arising from the above 
exercise was transferred to set off the accumulated losses of 
the Company which resulted in a positive retained earnings 
as at 31 March 2017.  

Borrowings

The borrowings of the Group for FY2017 was RM8.87mil 
as compared to RM11.58mil in FY2016. The reduction was 
mainly due to the monthly repayment of RM5.0mil term loan 
obtained in Year 2013.

The debt/equity ratio was lower at 20.85% in FY2017 as 
compared to 28.28% in FY2016. This indicates a healthy 
cash flow management with lower gearing ratio.  The Group 
will continue to be prudent in maintaining a sound financial 
position that enables execution of strategic objectives in 
creating values over the coming years.  

Deferred Revenue

The deferred revenue consists of progress billings for 
uncompleted property development projects which will only 
be recognised as revenue upon obtaining the Certificate of 
Completion. For FY2017, the progress billing declined by 
RM5.0mil due to lower sales as compared to FY2016.  

Manufacturing of 
Consumable Products Division 
Posted Higher PBT

RM3.77 M
for FY2017
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Property Development Segment 

a.	 Bandar Mutiara, Sungai Petani 

	 During the year, we have completed and sold 93% of 
Ametis Valley Project comprising 43 units of double 
storey terrace house in Bandar Mutiara Township, Sungai 
Petani, Kedah.  

	 In FY2018, the Group is targeting to complete and sell 
the mixed development projects which comprise of the 
followings with an estimated Gross Development Value 
of RM14.5mil:

•	 3 units of Double Storey Terrace houses 
•	 32 units of Double Storey Terrace houses 
•	 2 units of Diamond Bungalow
•	 3 units of Taman Batik Shop Office    

b.	 Taman Simfoni, Langkawi

	 The Joint Venture project with Simfoni Homes Sdn Bhd 
for Phase 2 in Taman Simfoni Langkawi known as Belize 
comprises of 2 blocks of 8 storey service apartments 
with a total of 196 units is progressing as planned. Upon 
completion, our subsidiary PKB Operasi Tembaga Sdn 
Bhd will take delivery of the service apartments with an 
estimated value of RM4.5mil as stipulated in the Joint 
Venture Agreement.  

ANTICIPATED AND KNOWN RISKS

Business Risk

The Group is exposed to external risks such as adverse 
economic and market conditions and internal risks related 
to the Group‘s operations and financial management. It 
has to be recognised that the Group is limited in what 
actions can be taken to manage or mitigate external 
economic risks. However, the Group has put in place a risk 
management framework to identify, manage and mitigate 
internal operational risks. Procurement and operational 
procedures are in place and are constantly reviewed to 
manage operational costs through improved efficiency 
and innovation. In addition, the capabilities of its human 
resources are strengthened through continuous training and 
recruitment.

Financial and cash flow risks are mitigated by maintaining 
sufficient cash reserve and ensuring the availability of credit 
facilities from financial institutions.

REVIEW OF OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Manufacturing of Consumable Products 

a.	 Trophy & Contract Manufacturing 

	 The manufacturing of consumable products is 
challenging due to the increase in labour cost after the 
implementation of minimum wages and the inconsistency 
on the Government’s policy relating to the recruitment 
of foreign workers. The depreciation of Ringgit has 
impacted the foreign worker’s remittance back to their 
source countries, hence, an upward adjustment on 
wages is required in order to retain them which has a 
direct impact on the operational costs.

	 Malaysia is no longer enjoying the Generalized System of 
Preferences (“GSP”) for products exported to European 
Union (“EU”) since 1 January 2014. The termination of 
GSP has resulted in our EU customers having to incur 
an additional tax of 6.5% for products imported from 
Malaysia. This has caused our exports to be more costly 
as compared to the products manufactured by members 
of EU, especially from the Eastern Europe countries.

	 The Group has undertaken to overcome the constraints 
of labour by automating our manufacturing facilities in 
stages with effect from FY2018. A budget of RM2.0mil 
in capital expenditures has been allocated to modernise 
our manufacturing facilities including automation which 
will reduce our dependency on manual labour, keeping 
our production abreast with the latest technology to 
help deliver higher productivity, efficiency and superior 
product quality.

b.	 Trading of Home Furnishing and Household Products

	 The cessation of retail business by one of its major 
customers during the last quarter of FY2016 has a major 
impact on trading division. In addition, the continuing 
slowdown in the world economy and the United Kingdom  
voted to exit from EU have also greatly affected the 
business growth.

	 The Group will constantly monitor and take proactive 
steps to overcome the decline in revenue by finding new 
customers in UK and EU market. Various measures have 
also been implemented to reduce the operating cost in 
view of the lower revenue.  

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (Cont’d)
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT

Consumable Products Segment

a.	 Manufacturing of Consumable Products

	 Going forward, the Group will continue to focus on its 
core business of manufacturing and marketing of trophy 
and consumable products. The Group will continue to 
leverage and build on its strong reputation in the market 
as a consistently reliable partner delivering quality 
products to its wide range of customers competitively.  
The modernisation exercise to be implemented in stages 
in FY2018 will give an impetus to be more competitive in 
the global market.

b.	 Trading of Home Furnishing and Household Products

	 The prospect for trading of home furnishing and 
household products division will remain challenging. 
However, with our pool of experienced team in 
providing professional sourcing service ranging from 
product offering to delivery, we are confident that we 
will overcome this obstacle by acquiring new customers.   

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (Cont’d)

MANAGEMENT TEAM 

TEOH GUAT HEONG 
Finance and Accounts

LIEW KONG WANG
Trading and Sourcing

TRACEY LIM LAY KHIM
Business Development

CASS LIM POH LENG 
Property and Development

LUCINDA LIM POH HOON
Chief Marketing Officer

DAN TAN CHIN PENG
Sales and Customer Service

JULIE ONG LYE IM
Operations

FROM LEFT TO RIGHT

Property Development Segment

The property market in Malaysia remains to be challenging 
in view of the escalating cost of living and uncertainties in 
the market sentiment. Currently, the consumers are more 
prudent and cautious in making commitment for major 
purchases such as property. The Group will be selective on 
the launching of new property projects targeting first home 
buyers with property priced  at mid-range level. In addition, 
the Group will continue to aggressively carry out promotion 
activities for overall projects.
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China International Gift & 
Home Products Fair 

Hong Kong Gifts & Premium Fair

Marketing Activities
The Group will continue to penetrate into international market 
by actively participating in exhibitions and trade fairs.

Kuala Lumpur International Gifts Fair

16
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Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group acknowledges that in pursuit of any business objective, there is a need to find a balance between profitability and 
contributions towards being a socially responsible corporate citizen. With such belief, the Group is committed and uses its 
best endeavour, on ongoing basis, to integrate corporate social responsibility (“CSR”) practices into its day to day business 
operation. The CSR activities carried out by the Group are summarised below:

YTM Dr Tunku Monsor Ibni AlMarhum Tunku Kassim Visit

Emico Annual Dinner
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Corporate Social Responsibility (Cont’d)

Official Hand Over 
Ceremony of Surau Al-Banna 

Sponsorship of the 
Heroes of the Ocean 2016

Emico Annual Dinner
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Corporate Social Responsibility (Cont’d)

In order to provide a better working relationship and promoting teamwork amongst employees, the Group had supported 
and organised various sports activities.

ISO9001 Training Fun Gathering

ERT Training Forklift Safety Training

Penang Bridge International Marathon
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Corporate Social Responsibility (Cont’d)

29 years & below
30 years to 39 years
40 years to 49 years
50 years to 59 years
60 years & above

by
Age Group

32.40%

5.59%

30.73%

10.61%

20.67%

Workplace Diversity

The Group supports a diverse and inclusive workforce that 
comprises a mix of community from different gender, age 
group and ethnicity which provides opportunities for creative 
solutions and promotes productivity.

Bumiputra
Chinese
Indian
Non-Malaysian

by
Ethnicity

28.49% 21.79%

42.46%
7.26%

Male
Female

by
Gender

33.52%

66.48%
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REPORT OF AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The Board has appointed the Audit Committee to assist the Board in discharging its duties of maintaining a sound system of 
internal controls to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets.

TERMS OF REFERENCE

•	 	 Purpose
		  The primary objective of the Audit Committee (as a sub-committee of the Board) is to assist the Board in the effective 

discharge of its fiduciary responsibilities for corporate governance, financial reporting and internal control.

•	 	 Reporting Responsibilities
		  The Audit Committee will report to the Board on the nature and extent of the functions performed by it and may make 

such recommendations to the Board on any audit and financial reporting matters as it may think fit.

•	 	 Attendance at Meeting
		  The head of finance, the head of internal audit and a representative of external audit shall normally attend meetings. 

The Company Secretary shall be the Secretary of the Audit Committee. Other board members or employees may be 
invited to brief the Audit Committee on issues that are incorporated into the agenda.

•	 	 Frequency of Meeting
		  The Committee will meet as frequently as the Chairman shall decide, with due notice of issues to be discussed and 

shall record its conclusions whilst discharging its duties and responsibilities. The Audit Committee should meet with the 
external auditors without executive board members present at least once a year.

 
		  The Chairman of the Audit Committee should engage on a continuous basis with senior management, such as the 

chairman, managing director, the head of the internal audit and the external auditors in order to be kept informed of 
matters affecting the Company.

•	 	 Quorum
		  The quorum for a meeting shall be 2 (two) members, the majority of whom shall be independent directors.

•	 	 Authority
		  The Audit Committee is authorised by the Board to investigate any activity within its terms of reference. The Audit 

Committee shall have unrestricted access to both the internal and external auditors and to all employees of the Group. 
The internal audit function reports directly to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee may, with the approval of the 
Board, consult legal or other professionals where they consider it necessary to discharge their duties.

MEMBERSHIP AND MEETINGS

The composition of the Company’s Audit Committee, appointed by the Board from amongst its members, comprises of 3 
(three) members of which all are Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Membership

•	 	 The members of the Audit Committee shall be appointed by the Board.
•	 	 The Audit Committee shall consist of not less than three (3) members of whom:

a)		  all members of the Audit Committee must be Non-Executive Directors with a majority of them being independent 
directors;

b)		 at least one (1) member of the Audit Committee:
i)		 must be a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants; or
ii)	 if he or she is not a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants,

a)		  he or she must have at least three (3) years’ working experience; and
•	 	 he or she must have passed the examinations specified in Part I of the First Schedule of the 

Accountants Act, 1967; or
•	 	 he or she must be a member of one (1) of the associations of accountants specified in Part Il of 

the First Schedule of the Accountants Act, 1967; or
iii)	 he or she fulfils such other requirements as prescribed or approved by Bursa Securities.
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MEMBERSHIP AND MEETINGS (Cont’d)

Membership (Cont’d)

•	 	 The Audit Committee shall consist of not less than three (3) members of whom:

c)		  all members of the Audit Committee should be financially literate.
•		 No alternate director shall be appointed as a member of the Audit Committee.
•		 The Chairman of the Audit Committee shall be appointed by the members of the Audit Committee among 

their member who is an independent director.
•		 The Board must review the term of office and performance of the Audit Committee and each of its members 

at least once every three (3) years to determine whether such Committee and members have carried out 
their duties in accordance with their terms of reference.

•		 The Board shall, within three (3) months of a vacancy occurring in the Audit Committee which result in the 
number of members reduced to below three (3), appoint such number of new members as may be required 
to make up the minimum number of three (3) members.

Meetings
During the financial year ended 31 March 2017, the Committee held meetings on 27 May 2016, 17 June 2016, 19 August 
2016, 21 November 2016 and 27 February 2017 respectively, making a total of 5 (five) meetings. 

Name Designation Independence Status Attendance of meetings

Wong Thai Sun Chairman Independent Non-Executive Director 5/5
Ng Chee Kong Member Independent Non-Executive Director 4/5
Wong Sew Yun Member Independent Non-Executive Director 4/5

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The primary goal of the Committee is to review the financial condition of the Group, its internal controls, performance and 
findings of the internal auditors and to recommend appropriate remedial action. The primary duties and responsibilities of 
the Committee are as follows:

•	 	 to review both the internal and external auditor’s scope of audit plan, their evaluation of the system of internal controls 
and audit reports.

•	 	 to review and evaluate the adequacy of the scope, functions, competency and resources of the internal audit functions 
and that it has the necessary authority to carry out its work.

•	 	 to consider the appointment and/or reappointment of external and internal auditors, their fees and any question of 
their resignation or dismissal and to recommend to the Board.

•	 	 to nominate, for the approval of the Board of Directors, a person or persons as auditor(s).

•	 	 to review the assistance and co-operation given by the Company’s officers to the external and internal auditors.

•	 	 to review the quarterly and year end financial statements before submission to the Board of Directors, focusing 
particularly on:

a)		  changes in or implementation of major accounting policy changes
b)		 significant and unusual events; and
c)		  compliance with accounting standards and other legal requirements.

•	 	 to review any related party transactions that may arise within the Company or the Group.

•	 	 to consider adequacy of Management’s actions taken on internal and external audit reports.

•	 	 to review the allocation of shares to employees under the Employee’s Share Option Scheme (If any).

REPORT OF AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont’d)
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REPORT OF AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

During the financial year ended 31 March 2017, the Committee held meetings on  27 May 2016, 17 June 2016, 19 August 
2016, 21 November 2016 and 27 February 2017 respectively, making a total of 5 (five) meetings. The committee also 
appraised the adequacy of actions taken by the Management in resolving the reported audit issues and in implementing 
suggested improvement measures. 

The activities of the audit committee include the followings:

a.		  Reviewed and approved the annual audit plan of the Internal and External Auditors.

b.		  On quarterly basis and financial year end, the Committee reviewed the financial statements prepared by the Management 
for proper approval by the Board on its announcements. 

c.		  Reviewed the annual audited financial statements of the Company and the Group with the external auditors before 
recommending them for approval by the Board of Directors.

d.		  Reviewed and approved Internal Audit Reports of the Group and discussed results of their examination and 
recommendations.

e.	 	 Reviewed and considered the disclosure of Related Party Transactions in the Financial Statements and the Recurrent 
Related Party Transactions Circular to shareholders.

f.		  Reviewed the Statement of Corporate Governance and Statement of Risk Management and Internal Control.

ACTIVITIES OF INTERNAL AUDIT

The Group out sourced its internal audit function. The Internal Auditors report directly to the Audit Committee. The cost 
incurred for the internal audit function for the financial year ended 31 March 2017 was RM21,200.

The role of the Internal Auditors is to examine, evaluate and ensure compliance with the Group’s policies, procedures and 
system of internal controls so as to provide reasonable assurance that such system continue to operate effectively in the 
Emico Group of Companies. The Internal Auditors work focuses on areas of priority as identified in accordance with the 
annual audit plan approved each year by the Audit Committee. For the financial year ended 31 March 2017, audit visits were 
conducted in all active subsidiaries of the Group.

The audit activities were as follows:

a.		  ascertaining the extent of compliance with the established policies, procedures and statutory requirements;

b.		  reviewing of new systems and modified systems to ensure that proper controls exist in the systems or where certain 
necessary controls were absent, to prescribe controls before implementation; and

c.		  identifying opportunities to improve the operations and the processes in the Company and the Group.

The Internal Auditors reports their audit findings to the Audit Committee and the Management of the respective subsidiaries.
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STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors of Emico Holdings Berhad is committed to ensuring that the Group is moving towards the highest 
standards of Corporate Governance in discharging its responsibilities to protect and enhance shareholders value and the 
Group’s financial performance.

The Board of Directors supports Malaysia Code of Corporate Governance 2012 (“MCCG”) and is committed towards 
achieving full compliance with its principles and recommendations therein.

PRINCIPLE 1 - ESTABLISH CLEAR ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

Board Charter 

In recognition that robust and well thought-out Corporate Governance practices are essential to safeguard the interests 
of the Group’s stakeholders, the Emico Board has established a Board Charter (“Charter”) to promote the best corporate 
governance culture and to assist the Board in carrying out its role, powers, duties and functions. The Board Charter was last 
reviewed by the Audit Committee and presented to Emico Board on 17 June 2016 and the details of the Board Charter can 
be viewed in www.emico.com.my.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board 

The business and affairs of Emico and the Group are managed under the direction and oversight of the Emico Board, which 
also has the responsibility to periodically review and approve the overall strategies, business, organisation and significant 
policies of Emico and the Group. The Board also sets the Group’s core values, adopts proper standards to ensure that Emico 
operates with integrity, and complies with the relevant rules and regulations. 

The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved for its decision which include, amongst others, the following: 

• 	 Reviewing and approving the strategies and business plans for Emico and the Group to ensure that they are aligned 
with the Group’s Vision and Mission;

• 	 Identifying and managing principal risks affecting the Group including establishing and approving the relevant policies;
•	 Reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the Group’s internal control systems; 
• 	 Overseeing the conduct and the performance of the Group’s businesses; 
• 	 Reviewing succession planning and talent management plans for the Group; 
• 	 Approving new policies pertaining to boardroom diversity; 
• 	 Approving changes to the corporate organisation structure; 
• 	 Approving the appointment of Directors and Directors’ emoluments and benefits in accordance with relevant statutes; 
• 	 Approving policies relating to corporate branding, public relations, investor relations and shareholder communication 

programmes; and 
• 	 Reviewing the Group’s strategies on promotion of sustainability focusing on environmental, social and governance 

(ESG) aspects. 

Other than as specifically reserved to the Board in the Board’s Terms of Reference, the responsibility for managing Emico’s 
business activities are delegated to the Executive Director and Managing Director of Emico, who is accountable to the Board. 

Some insight on how the Board had discharged their roles and responsibilities during the year are set out as per below: 

• 	 Succession Planning 
	 The Board reviewed its size and composition based on the prevailing laws, rules regulations and the internal policies of 

the Group on the tenure of directorships, not only to ensure continuity in meeting its long term goals and objectives but 
also to affirm that the knowledge, experience and skill sets of its members would be well suited to meet the demands 
of the ever changing landscape of the industry. 

• 	 Group Structure Review 
	 The Board reviewed the Group’s organisation structure to determine and address the challenges encountered in 

meeting the structure’s stated objective which includes, accelerating and supporting Group performance, raising 
efficiency, productivity and operational excellence. 
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STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Cont’d)

PRINCIPLE 1 - ESTABLISH CLEAR ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES (Cont’d)

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board (Cont’d)

Some insight on how the Board had discharged their roles and responsibilities during the year are set out as per below: 
(Cont’d) 

• 	 Review of Social Channel Strategy 
	 The Board reviewed the progress of the Group’s social channel strategy to assess achievements in the areas of 

reputational risk and business intelligence, marketing and promotions, customer loyalty and engagement as well as 
customer service on social channel and social commerce. 

•	 Corporate Responsibility and Sustainability 
	 The Board reviewed the progress of the Group’s corporate responsibility and sustainability plan to determine the 

progress, achievements and challenges faced in furthering the Group’s CR initiatives which is supported by three key 
pillars, namely Fulfil Our Responsibility to Community, Operate in a Safe and Sustainable Environment and Deliver 
Quality Products and Services.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Executive Chairman 

The Executive Chairman leads the Board and is also responsible for the effective performance of the Board. The Executive 
Chairman although holding a non-independent post but he continuously works together with the rest of the Board in setting the 
policy framework and strategies to align the business activities driven by the senior management with the Group’s objectives 
and aspirations, and monitors its implementation, and also ensures orderly conduct and proceedings of the Board, where 
healthy debate on issues being deliberated is encouraged to reflect an appropriate level of scepticism and independence. 
He also takes the lead to ensure the appropriateness and effectiveness of the succession planning programme for the Board. 
Furthermore, the Executive Chairman cultivates a healthy working relationship with the Managing Director and provides the 
necessary support and advice as appropriate. He continues to demonstrate the highest standards of corporate governance 
practices and ensures that these practices are regularly communicated to the stakeholders. As ever, the Executive Chairman 
will always try to ensure that the Board’s decisions are reached by consensus (and failing this, reflect the will of the majority), 
and will abstain himself in any deliberation or discussion on matters or issues involving any related parties and any concern or 
dissenting view expressed by any Directors on any matters deliberated at meetings of the Board, or any of its Committees, 
as well as the meetings’ decisions, will accordingly be addressed and duly recorded in the relevant minutes of the meeting. 

Role and Responsibilities of Managing Director

Mr Jimmy Ong Chin Keng has been the Managing Director and Executive Director of Emico since 23 February 2009. Mr Ong 
has been delegated certain responsibilities by the Board in his capacity as Managing Director and is primarily accountable 
for overseeing the day-to-day operations to ensure the smooth and effective running of the Group. Furthermore, he is 
responsible for mapping the medium to longer term plans for Board approval, and is accountable for implementing the 
policies and decisions of the Board, as well as coordinating the development and implementation of business and corporate 
strategies, specifically by making sure that they are carried through to their desired outcomes, especially in the institution of 
remedial measures to address identified shortcomings. He is also responsible for developing and translating the strategies 
into a set of manageable goals and priorities, and setting the overall strategic policy and direction of the business operations, 
investment and other activities based on effective risk management controls. The Managing Director ensures that the financial 
management practice is performed at the highest level of integrity and transparency for the benefit of the shareholders 
and that the business and affairs of Emico are carried out in an ethical manner and in full compliance with the relevant 
laws and regulations. The Managing Director is also tasked with ensuring that whilst the ultimate objective is maximising 
total shareholders return, social and environmental factors are not neglected, and also developing and maintaining strong 
communication programmes and dialogues with the shareholders, investors, analysts as well as employees, and providing 
effective leadership to the Group organisation. He is also responsible for ensuring high management competency as well as 
the emplacement of an effective management succession plan to sustain continuity of operations. The Managing Director, 
by virtue of his position as a Board member, also functions as the intermediary between the Board and senior management. 
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PRINCIPLE 1 - ESTABLISH CLEAR ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES (Cont’d)

Directors’ Remuneration 

The Board believes that one area that the Board needs to focus on in order to remain effective in the discharge of its duties 
and responsibilities is the setting of a fair and comprehensive remuneration package commensurate with the expertise, skills, 
responsibilities and the risks of being a director of a listed Issuer. In line with good corporate governance, the Board has set 
out its intention to periodically review the Independent Directors (IDs) remuneration for Emico and its group of companies at 
least once every three years. A summary of the total remuneration of the Directors, as distinguished between Executive and 
Independent Non-Executive Directors, in aggregate with categorisation into appropriate components for the financial year 
ended 31 March 2017 is as follows:

Categories Fee
(RM’000)

Salaries and other emoluments
(RM’000)

Benefits-in-kind
(RM’000)

Total                                     
(RM’000)

Executive Directors 84 1,510 57 1,651
Non-Executive Directors 60 10 - 70
Total 144 1,520 57 1,721

The Directors’ Remuneration are categorised into the following bands:

Range of Remuneration (RM) Executive Non-Executive

25,000 & below - 3
450,001 – 500,000 1 -
500,001 – 550,000 1 -
550,001 – 600,000 - -
600,001 – 650,000 - -
650,001 – 700,000 1 -

Quality and Supply of Information to the Board

The Board has full and unrestricted access to all information pertaining to Emico’s businesses and affairs as well as to the 
advice and services of the senior management of the Group. In addition to formal Board meetings, the Executive Chairman 
maintains regular contact with the Managing Director to discuss specific matters, and the latter assisted by the Company 
Secretary ensures that frequent and timely communication between the senior management and the Board is maintained at 
all times as appropriate. The Board is regularly kept up to date on and apprised of any regulations and guidelines, as well as 
any amendments thereto issued by Bursa Malaysia, Securities Commission, the Companies Commission of Malaysia and other 
relevant regulatory authorities including recommendations on corporate law reform in respect of Malaysian as well as relevant 
foreign jurisdictions. An agenda together with appropriate papers for each agenda item to be discussed is forwarded to each 
Director at least five clear days before the scheduled meeting to enable the Directors to review the papers in preparation 
for the meeting, and to obtain further clarification or explanation, where necessary, in order to be adequately apprised 
before the meeting. Additionally, Emico’s minutes of meetings of the Board and various Board Committees incorporate the 
discussions of the members at the meetings in arriving at decisions, to ensure a concise and accurate minutes. The draft 
minutes of the meeting are circulated within one week of the meetings to the Board for early feedback and suggestions prior 
to tabling at the subsequent meetings for formal confirmation. Senior management members are invited to attend Board 
meetings to report on matters relating to their areas of responsibility, and also to brief and present details to the Directors 
on recommendations submitted for the Board’s consideration. Additional information or clarification may be required to be 
furnished, particularly in respect of complex and technical issues tabled to the Board. 

Company Secretary 

Company Secretary is responsible for advising the Board on issues relating to corporate compliance with the relevant laws, 
rules, procedures and regulations affecting the Board and the Group, as well as best practices of governance. He is also 
responsible for advising the Directors of their obligations and duties to disclose their interest in securities, disclosure of any 
conflict of interest in a transaction involving Emico, prohibition on dealing in securities and restrictions on disclosure of price-
sensitive information. Based on feedback received from Board members, the Board was generally satisfied with the support 
provided for the year under review and a number of areas have been identified for further improvement. 

STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Cont’d)
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STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Cont’d)

PRINCIPLE 1 - ESTABLISH CLEAR ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES (Cont’d)

Whistleblowing Policy 

Emico Group advocates openness and transparency in its commitment to the highest standard of integrity and accountability. 
The Integrity Hotline which had been implemented since beginning of this year, provides an avenue for all the employees 
to report, in good faith, belief, without malicious intent, on any suspected misconduct or actual wrongdoing including but 
not limited to unethical incidences such as criminal activities or contravention of laws/regulations committed by another 
employee or any person who has dealings with the Group via the following channels: 

• 	 Protected Email Address at integrity@emico.com.my

The above email will be directly channelled to the Chairman of Audit Committee. 

Confidentiality of all matters raised and the identity of the whistleblower, are protected under the Policy. Emico Group has 
an Anti-Fraud Policy, which provides broad principles, strategies, and policies for the Group in relation to fraud in order to 
promote high standards of integrity. The policy establishes robust and comprehensive programmes and controls for the 
Group and highlights the roles and responsibilities at every level for preventing and responding to fraud. 

Emico Group’s Code of Ethics and Conduct 

In addition to the Company Directors’ Code of Ethics established by the Companies Commission of Malaysia, the Group also 
has a Code of Ethics and Conduct that sets out sound principles and standards of good practice in the industry, which are 
observed by the Directors and the employees. Both Directors and employees are required to uphold the highest integrity in 
discharging their duties and in dealings with stakeholders, customers, fellow employees and regulators. This is in line with the 
Group’s Core Values which emphasise behavioural ethics when dealing with third parties and fellow employees The Group-
wide programmes conducted during the year to embed the right ethical values and compliance with Emico’s Code of Ethics 
amongst all Emico’s employees were as follows: 

1.	 Annual Emico’s Code of Ethics Declaration; and
2. 	 Training through orientation for new employees.

PRINCIPLE 2 – STRENGTHEN COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD 

• 	 Board Size, Composition and Balance 

There are currently 6 Directors on the Emico Board. Three are Independent Directors and three are Executive Directors (which 
consist of one Deputy Managing Director, one Managing Director and one Executive Chairman). The present composition of 
the Board complied with the requirement as stipulated in the Listing Requirements as half of its members are Independent 
Directors. In considering the size of its membership, the Board is of the view that it should not be constrained to maintain 
a fixed number of Directors on the Board at any given time, but instead would consider the same in terms of the Board’s 
overall effectiveness, including whether the present size is one that is manageable and would not inhibit or impair the ability 
of directors to contribute their thoughts and ideas meaningfully. As part of its succession plan, the Board will continue to 
scout for new members to further address, among others, the need to have more women on the Board, in furtherance of 
the national agenda. The Directors provide a wealth of knowledge, experience and skills in key areas such as accountancy, 
international business operations and development, finance and risk management. A brief profile of each member of the 
Board is presented on pages 6 to 9 of this Annual Report. 

Diversity and Inclusiveness 

The Board is committed to ensuring diversity and inclusiveness in its composition and deliberations and the Group embraces 
the proposition that having a diverse Board would have a positive, value-relevant impact on the Group. In this regard, the 
Board considers diversity from a number of different aspects, including gender, age, cultural and educational background, 
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. 
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PRINCIPLE 2 – STRENGTHEN COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD (Cont’d)

BOARD COMMITTEES 

Delegation of certain of its governance responsibilities has been undertaken by the Board in favour of its Board Committees, 
which operate within clearly defined terms of references, primarily to assist the Board in the execution of its duties and 
responsibilities. Although the Board has granted such discretionary authority to these Board Committees to deliberate and 
decide on certain key and operational matters, the ultimate responsibility for final decision on all matters lies with the entire 
Board. The Chairmen of the Board Committees will table and present a report on the activities of the respective Board 
Committees at the quarterly Board meetings. 

The Board Committees of the Emico Board are as follows: 
1. 	 Audit Committee 
2. 	 Remuneration Committee 
3. 	 Nominating Committee 
4. 	 Risk Management Committee  

1.	 Audit Committee (AC)

	 The Board authorises the AC to investigate any activities within its Terms of Reference and has unrestricted access to 
both the internal and external auditors and members of the senior management of the Group. The activities carried 
out by the AC, which met 5 times during the year under review, are summarised in the Audit Committee Report and its 
Terms of Reference as stated on page 21 of this Annual Report. Members of the Audit Committee are as indicated on 
page 22 of this Annual Report. 

2.	 Remuneration Committee (RC) 

	 The terms of reference for RC are as follows:

	 Appointment/Composition
•	 The RC shall be appointed by the Board of Directors.
•	 The RC shall consist of not less than two (2) members.
•	 The majority of RC shall be Independent Non-Executive Directors.

	 The members of RC are as follows:

Name	 Designation Directorate

Mr. Ng Chee Kong Chairman Independent Non-Executive Director
Mr. Wong Thai Sun Member Independent Non-Executive Director
Mr. Jimmy Ong Chin Keng Member Managing Director

	 The duties and responsibilities of RC consist of the following:
•	 To establish and recommend to the Board, the remuneration package for Executive Directors such as the terms 

of employment or contract of employment/service, benefit, pension, incentive scheme, bonuses, fees, expenses, 
compensation payable on termination of service of contract by the Company and/or the Group etc.

•	 To review and recommend to the Board the remuneration packages of Non-Executive Directors for shareholders 
approval at the Annual General Meeting.

•	 To consider other remunerations or rewards to retain and attract directors.

3.	 Nominating Committee (NR)

	 The members of NC are as follows:

Name	 Designation Directorate

Mr. Ng Chee Kong Chairman Independent Non-Executive Director
Mr. Wong Thai Sun Member Independent Non-Executive Director
Mr. Wong Sew Yun Member Independent Non-Executive Director

	

STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Cont’d)
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PRINCIPLE 2 – STRENGTHEN COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD (Cont’d)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont’d)

3.	 Nominating Committee (NR) (Cont’d)

	 The Term of Reference for NC are as follows:

	 Appointment/Composition
•	 The NC shall be appointed by the Board of Directors.
•	 The NC shall consists of not less than two (2) members.
•	 The majority of the NC shall be Independent Non-Executive Directors.
•	 The Chairman of NC must be an independent director and shall be appointed by the Board of Directors. In the 

absence of Chairman of the NC, the remaining members present shall elect one of their member to chair the 
meeting.

The duties and responsibilities of NC includes: 

1. 	 To oversee the selection of Directors and general composition of the Emico Board (size, skill and balance between 
Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors); 

2. 	 To evaluate the quality of directors in order to ensure alignment with the Group’s strategic direction; 
3. 	 To recommend to the Emico Board a policy regarding the period of service for the Executive and Non-Executive 

Directors; 
4. 	 To assess the performance and effectiveness of individuals and collective members of the Boards and Board 

Committees of the Group, as well as the procedure for the assessment; 
5.	 To recommend measures to upgrade the effectiveness of the Boards and Board Committees;
6.	 To recommend to the Emico Board a performance management framework/model, including the setting of the 

appropriate performance target parameters and benchmark for the Group at the start of each financial year; 
7.	 To oversee the succession planning of the members of the Board of Directors and key management; 
8.	 To consider and recommend solutions to issues of conflict of interest affecting Directors; 
9. 	 To assess annually that Directors, key responsible persons and Company Secretary are not disqualified under 

Companies Act 2016; and 
10. 	 To review the training requirements and programmes for the Directors. 

The main activities of the NC is summarised as follows: 

1. 	 The assessment on the performance of the Board as a whole as per the Annual Board Assessment, which covered 
performance of Board, Board Committees and Directors Self Assessment to ensure the Board’s effectiveness; 

2. 	 The assessment on the performance of Directors, particularly those who would retire at the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting and the recommendation to the Board for their re-election; 

3. 	 The recommendation to the Board on the appropriate balance and size of the Board and the required directors’ 
skills and experience to ensure the effectiveness of the Board; 

4. 	 The recommendation to the Board on the suitable training programmes to attend which are relevant to the 
industry in which Emico operates; 

5. 	 The recommendation to the Board on the revision of composition of Boards and Board Committees of Emico 
Group;

6.	 The assessment on the fitness and propriety of Directors with regard to their appointments on the Board of Emico;
7.	 The assessment and recommendation to the Board on the review of the remuneration for Independent Non-

Executive Directors of Emico; 
8.	 The assessment and recommendation to the Board on the performance of Executive Directors as well as a review 

of their remuneration; and  
9. 	 The review of the succession planning and talent management of Senior Executives of Emico;  

The NC held one meeting during the financial year on 27 May 2016. 

4.	 Risk Management Committee (RMC) 

The roles and responsibilities of the RMC include the following: 

1. 	 To review and approve risk management strategies, risk frameworks, risk policies, risk tolerance and risk appetite 
limits; 

2. 	 To review and assess adequacy of risk management policies and framework in identifying, measuring, monitoring 
and controlling risks and the extent to which they operate effectively; 
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PRINCIPLE 2 – STRENGTHEN COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD (Cont’d)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont’d)

4	 Risk Management Committee (RMC) (Cont’d)

The roles and responsibilities of the RMC include the following: 

3. 	 To ensure infrastructure, resources and systems are in place for risk management, i.e. ensuring that the staff 
responsible for implementing risk management systems perform those duties independently of the risk taking 
activities; and 

4. 	 To review management’s periodic reports on risk exposure, risk portfolio composition and risk management 
activities. 

The specific duties of the RMC in managing risks cover the following: 

1. 	 To review the impact of risk on capital adequacy and profitability and asset quality under stress scenarios; 
2. 	 To review and recommend strategic actions to be taken by Emico arising from regulatory rules impacting risk 

management practices for Board’s approval; 
3. 	 To review, recommend and approve corrective measures to address risk concerns as highlighted by various 

regulatory authorities, where relevant; 
4. 	 To provide oversight of specific risk management concerns in the Business Sectors of the Group; 
5. 	 To delegate appropriate operational issues to Management for their further actions; 
6. 	 To carry out such other responsibilities as may be delegated to it by the Board from time to time; and 
7. 	 To review and approve Terms of References (TORs) of Executive Risk Management Committee.

	 During the financial year ended 31 March 2017, two meetings were held. The activities carried out by the Risk 
Management Committee, are summarised in the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control and the Risk 
Management Framework as stated on pages 37 to 38 of this Annual Report. Members of the Risk Management 
Committee are as indicated on page 2 of this Annual Report.

PRINCIPLE 3 – REINFORCE INDEPENDENCE 

Independent Directors

The current Board composition, which comprises an equal proportion of Independent Directors, helps the Board to ensure 
and provide strong and effective oversight over management. Independent Directors do not participate in the day-to-day 
management of Emico and do not engage in any business dealing or other relationships with in order to ensure that they 
remain truly capable of exercising independent judgment and act in the best interests of the Group and its shareholders. 
Further, the Board is satisfied and assured that no individual or group of Directors has unfettered powers of decision that 
could create a potential conflict of interest. The Board’s commitment to ensure good governance in its deliberation on 
key issues is evident with the scheduling of a “Private Session with Auditors” (involving only Independent Directors) as a 
permanent item at least once in the Board meeting agenda. 

The Board ensures that all Independent Directors possess the following qualities: 

• 	 Ability to challenge the assumptions, beliefs or viewpoints of others with intelligent questioning, constructive and 
rigorous debating, and dispassionate decision-making in the interest of Emico; 

•	  Willingness to stand up and defend their own views, beliefs and opinions for the ultimate good of Emico; and 
•	  A good understanding of Emico’s business activities in order to appropriately provide responses to the various strategic 

and technical issues confronted by the Board.
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PRINCIPLE 3 – REINFORCE INDEPENDENCE (Cont’d)

Directors’ Independence Policy 

Consistent with the Group’s Directors’ Independence Policy and recommendations of the Code, the Board via the NC 
assesses the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors upon his appointment, re-appointment and in any 
event, annually. In line with the Code, the tenure of service for Independent Non-Executive Directors has been capped 
at the maximum period of nine years whereby upon completion of such tenure, the Independent Non-Executive Director 
may continue to serve on the Board. Having said this, the Board recognises that an individual’s independence cannot be 
determined arbitrarily on the basis of a set period of time alone. The Board also considers that continued tenure could bring 
considerable stability to the Board and acknowledges the fact that it has benefited greatly from the presence of Board 
members who have over time gained valuable insight into the Group and its markets. Hence, the Board may in certain 
circumstances and subject to the NC’s assessment, decide to maintain a member as an Independent Non-Executive Director 
beyond the requisite 9-year period, if the Board is satisfied (upon the review by the NC) that the said Director can remain 
independent in character and judgement, and would continue to present an objective and constructive challenge to the 
assumptions and viewpoints presented by the management and the Board. Under such circumstances, the Board may allow 
the shareholders to decide whether the said Director should continue to be designated as an Independent Non-Executive 
Director (notwithstanding the fact his tenure has exceeded the 9-year period), with strong justifications provided by the 
Board to support the proposal. Currently all of the Board’s Independent Non-Executive members has reached the 9-year 
term in Emico. Independence Assessment by The NC undertakes the independence assessment via the Board and Director 
Self Assessment taking into account the directors’ skills, experience, contributions, background, economic and, tenure of 
directorship and the Independent Non-Executive Directors’ self-declaration on their compliance with the independence as 
stated in the Listing Requirements. The NC determines the ability of the Independent Non-Executive Director to continue 
bringing independent and objective judgment to the board deliberations as well as considers if there is any ground or 
reason that has come to the attention of the NC that may affect the independence status of the Independent Non-Executive 
Directors of Emico. The Board considers that the three Independent Non-Executive Directors (INEDs), namely Wong Sew 
Yun, Ng Chee Kong and Wong Thai Sun have met the said independence criteria under the Listing Requirements as well as 
Emico‘s Policy on Directors’ Independence. 

Board Appointment Process 

A formal and transparent procedure is in place vis-à-vis the appointment of new Directors to the Board, the primary 
responsibility of which has been delegated to the Nominating Committee (NC). Such responsibilities include screening, 
conducting initial selection of internal and external candidates, performing requisite evaluation and assessment on the 
candidates’ ability to discharge their duties effectively and efficiently, prior to making recommendations to the Board for its 
approval. The NC also ensures candidates possess the appropriate skills, core competencies, experience, integrity and time 
to effectively discharge his or her role as a director. In accordance with this procedure, the NC recommends to the Board 
suitable candidates for directorships. In relation to the candidate’s skills, expertise and background, the candidate should 
ideally and to the extent available, possess a diverse range of skills, including in particular, business, legal and financial 
expertise, professional knowledge and industry experience, as well as experience in regional and international markets. The 
following aspects would be considered by the Board in making the selection, with the assistance of the NC: 

1. 	 Probity, personal integrity and reputation — the person must have key qualities such as honesty, integrity, diligence, 
independence of mind and fairness. 

2. 	 Competence and capability — the person must have the necessary skills, ability and commitment to carry out the role. 
3. 	 Financial integrity — the person must manage his debts or financial affairs prudently.

The appointment process for Executive Directors is similarly robust, in order to ensure that the best person is selected for 
the top executive position in the interest of the Group. The process includes the identification of potential candidates (both 
internal as well as external) by a special committee of the Board, governed by the expectation of the roles and capabilities 
described and required by the Board. This process includes interviews, which are subsequently followed by a submission to 
the NC for deliberation and thereafter the final recommendation to the Board for endorsement. With the assistance of the 
NC, the curriculum vitae of prospective candidates would from time to time, be discreetly obtained from various internal 
and external for further review, to ensure that the Board would always have a steady pool of talent to choose from whenever 
there is a need to appoint additional members on the Board or otherwise, to replace a member who is retiring or resigning 
from the Board. 
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PRINCIPLE 3 – REINFORCE INDEPENDENCE (Cont’d)

Directors’ Retirement, Re-Election and Re-Appointment 

All directors of Emico, including the Managing Director as an Executive Director, are subject to re-election by the shareholders 
at the first opportunity after their appointment, and are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years 
in accordance with the Listing Requirements and Emico’s Articles of Association. The Board’s support for a Director’s re-
election is not automatic and is subject to satisfactory assessment of performance. As evaluated by the NC and approved 
by the Board, all of these directors have met the Board’s expectations and continued to perform in an exemplary manner as 
demonstrated by among others, their contribution to the Board’s deliberations and the Board would accordingly recommend 
to the shareholders, their respective re-elections. 

Board and Individual Director’s Effectiveness 

The NC follows a formal and transparent process to assess the effectiveness of individual Directors, the Board as a whole 
and its committees, as well as the performance of the Managing Director in respect of their respective skills and experience, 
pursuant to the Board and Director Self Assessment exercise. This is undertaken upon the completion of every financial year.
The Board and Director Self Assessment exercise is primarily based on answers to a list of questionnaire. The assessment 
questionnaire is distributed to all the respective Board members and covers topics which include, amongst others, the 
integrity and responsibilities of the Board in relation to development of Group Business and protecting shareholders’ interest 
and value. Other areas being assessed include the contribution of each and every member of the Board and Board Committee 
at meetings, the Board’s decision-making and output, information and support rendered to the Board. All feedback received 
will initially be received and compiled and thereafter submitted to the Board for its review and final endorsement. 

Independent Professional Advice 

Independent professional advice can be obtained by any Individual Directors, at Emico’s expense where necessary, in the 
furtherance of their duties in accordance with Emico’s Policy and Procedure. Copies of any reports, advice and recommendations 
provided by the independent professional adviser to the relevant Director would be forwarded by the said Director to the 
Company Secretary, who will, where appropriate, circulate them to other Directors to ensure that they are kept informed of 
pertinent issues, which may have an impact on the Group’s interest, growth and performance.  

PRINCIPLE 4 – FOSTER COMMITMENT 

Board Meetings 

The Board meets on a quarterly basis, with additional meetings convened as and when urgent issues and/or important 
decisions are required to be addressed between the scheduled meetings. During the financial year ended 31 March 2017, 
the Board met 5 times to deliberate and consider a variety of significant matters that required its guidance and approval. All 
the Directors have exceeded the 50% meeting attendance requirement as prescribed by the Listing Requirements. Details 
of attendance of each Director on the Board and respective Board Committees of Emico during the financial year ended 31 
March 2017 are highlighted in the table below. 

Name of director Directorship Attendance

Lim Teik Hian Executive Chairman 5/5
Jimmy Ong Chin Keng Managing Director 5/5
Lim Teck Chye Deputy Managing Director 4/5
Wong Sew Yun Independent Non-Executive Director 4/5
Ng Chee Kong Independent Non-Executive Director 4/5
Wong Thai Sun Independent Non-Executive Director 5/5

The Board, via Nominating Committee reviewed annually the time commitment of Directors and ensures that they are able 
to carry out their own responsibilities and contributions to the Board. It is the Board’s policy for the Directors to notify the 
Chairman before accepting any new directorship notwithstanding that the MMLR a Director to sit on the Boards of five (5) 
listed issuers. Such notification is expected to include an indication of time that will be spent on the new appointment. 
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PRINCIPLE 4 – FOSTER COMMITMENT (Cont’d)

Directors’ Training 

The Board acknowledges the importance of continuing education for its Directors to ensure they are equipped with the 
necessary skills and knowledge to perform their functions and meet the challenges of the Board. During the year, all the 
Board members have attended various training programmes and workshops on issues relevant to the Group, including 
key training programme for Directors. The Board continues to assess the training needs of its Directors vide the Board 
Assessment and identify key areas of focus for training programmes. Training programmes, conferences and forums attended 
by the Directors for the financial year ended 31 March 2017 were as follows: 

Director’s Name Training Programme

Lim Teik Hian In-house training on “Risk Management”.
Jimmy Ong Chin Keng i)	 “Corporate Governance Statement Workshop”.

ii)	 In-house training on “Risk Management”. 

Lim Teck Chye In-house training on “Risk Management”.
Wong Thai Sun i)	 Attended “Malaysian Taxation for Entrepreneurs & Employers”.

ii)	 In-house training on “Risk Management”.
Ng Chee Kong In-house training on “Risk Management”.
Wong Sew Yun In-house training on “Risk Management”.

PRINCIPLE 5 – UPHOLD INTEGRITY IN FINANCIAL REPORTING

BOARD PROFESSIONALISM 

Directorships in Other Companies 

In compliance with the Listing Requirements, each member of the Emico Board holds not more than five directorships in 
public listed companies to enable the Directors to discharge their duties effectively by ensuring that their commitment, 
resources and time are more focused. Whilst the Board values the experience and perspective gained by the Independent 
Non-Executive Directors from their memberships on the boards of other companies, organisations, and associations, the 
Board Manual provides that the Independent Non-Executive Directors must first consult the Chairman to ensure that their 
acceptance of such other appointments, such as directorships of other listed companies, would not unduly affect their time 
commitments and responsibilities to the Emico Board and Group. Conflict of Interest Members of the Board are required 
to make a declaration at the Board meeting in the event that they have interests in proposals being considered by the 
Board, including where such interest arises through close family members, in line with various statutory requirements on 
the disclosure of Director’s interest. In all situations where the Directors could be deemed as interested, they would excuse 
themselves from the discussion and leave the meeting room. The minutes of meeting would also reflect as such. 

Insider Trading 

Directors, key management personnel and principal officers of the Emico Group are prohibited from trading in securities 
or any kind of property based on price sensitive information and knowledge, which has not become public information, in 
accordance with the Listing Requirements and the relevant provisions of the Capital Markets & Services (Amendment) Act 
2015. Notices on the closed period for trading in Emico’s securities are circulated to Directors, key management personnel 
and principal officers who are deemed to be privy to any price sensitive information and knowledge, in advance of whenever 
the closed period is applicable. Any dealings in securities by the Directors and principal officers would be publicly disclosed, 
in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Listing Requirements.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT 

Financial Reporting and Disclosure Financial Reporting 

The Board has a fiduciary responsibility to present to the shareholders and the public at large, a clear, balanced and meaningful 
evaluation of the Group and Emico’s financial position, financial performance and prospects. The Board is assisted by the 
Audit Committee in overseeing the financial reporting process and the quality of the Group and Emico’s financial statements. 
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PRINCIPLE 5 – UPHOLD INTEGRITY IN FINANCIAL REPORTING (Cont’d)

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Cont’d)

Disclosure on Financial Highlights, Indicators & Reports 

The Group and Emico’s financial highlights and indicators for the financial year ended 31 March 2017 are set out on page 
4 of this annual report. The Group’s financial statements are included on pages 49 to 115 of the Annual Report (Financial 
Statements) and the financial results for the financial year ended 31 March 2017 were announced to the public on 23 May 
2017, less than 60 days after the financial year end. 

Directors’ Responsibility Statement 

The Board also ensures that the Group and Emico’s financial statements prepared for each financial year give a true and 
fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the 
requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The Statement of Directors’ Responsibility in respect of the preparation 
of audited financial statements for the Group and Emico is set out on page 36 of the Financial Statements book of the Annual 
Report 2017. 

Relationship with the Auditors 

Internal Auditors 

Group Internal Audit reports functionally to the AC and has unrestricted access to the AC. Its function is independent of 
the activities or operations of other operating units. The Group Internal Audit regularly evaluates the effectiveness of the 
risk management process, reviews the operating effectiveness of the internal controls system and compliance control in the 
Group. The Group Chief Internal Audit Executive is invited to attend the AC meetings to facilitate the deliberation of audit 
reports. The minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are then tabled to the Board for information and serve as useful 
references, especially if there are pertinent issues that any Directors wish to highlight or seek clarification on. 

External Auditors 

The AC and the Board place great emphasis on the objectivity and independence of the Emico’s Auditors, namely Messrs. 
BDO, in providing relevant and transparent reports to the shareholders. To ensure full disclosure of matters, Emico’s Auditors 
are regularly invited to attend the AC meetings (as well as the Annual General Meetings). During FY2017, Emico’s Auditors 
had met once with the AC without the presence of the senior management. The Emico’s Auditors has also provided their 
written assurance to the Group in respect of their independence during FY2017. A full report of the Audit Committee 
outlining its role in relation to the internal and external auditors is set out in the Audit Committee Report on pages 21 to 23 
of this Annual Report. 

PRINCIPLE 6 – RECOGNISE AND MANAGE RISKS

Internal Controls 

The Board has overall responsibility for establishing and maintaining a sound risk management and internal control system 
to ensure that shareholders’ investments, customers’ interests and the Group’s assets are safeguarded. The effectiveness of 
risk management and internal controls is continuously reviewed to ensure that they are working adequately and effectively. 
The Audit Committee of the Board (“ACB”) regularly evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal 
control systems by reviewing the actions taken on lapses/deficiencies identified in reports prepared by Group Audit during its 
scheduled meetings. The ACB also reviews Audit’s recommendations and management responses to these recommendations 
to ensure the lapses/deficiencies identified are being dealt with adequately and promptly. 

The Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control is furnished on pages 37 to 38 of this Annual Report and this 
provides an overview of the state of internal controls within the Group. 
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PRINCIPLE 7– ENSURE TIMELY AND HIGH QUALITY DISCLOSURES

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION 

Emico’s corporate governance framework that ensures that shareholders, stakeholders, investors and the domestic and 
international investment community receive relevant, timely and comprehensive information about the Group in line Bursa 
Malaysia’s Corporate Disclosure Guide 2012 that encourages prompt and timely dissemination of information to shareholders 
and investors, and recommends the adoption of a policy on corporate disclosures. 

Quarterly Results 

Emico’s quarterly financial results are released immediately after the quarterly Board of Director’s meeting. Financial 
statements are made public on the corporate website to provide the investment community with a better understanding of 
Emico’s performance. 

Group Corporate Website 

Emico’s Group Corporate Website (www.emico.com.my) provides comprehensive and easy access to the latest information 
about the Group. Information available on the corporate website includes Emico’s corporate profile, individual profiles of 
directors, financial results, annual reports, corporate news and Emico’s global operations and subsidiaries. Additionally, 
information on the Group Governance Structure and framework is also published in the Group Corporate Website. In 
addition, stakeholders can obtain regulatory announcements made by Emico to Bursa Malaysia on the latter’s website (www.
bursamalaysia.com). 

Annual Report

Emico’s Annual Report provides a comprehensive report on the Group’s operations and financial performance for the year 
under review. It provides full disclosure and is in compliance with the relevant regulations to ensure greater transparency. The 
Annual Reports are also printed in summary form together with a digital version of the Annual Report in CD-ROM format. An 
online version of the Annual Report is also available on Emico’s corporate website.

PRINCIPLE 8 – ESTABLISH & STRENGHTEN RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN COMPANY AND SHAREHOLDERS

The Annual General Meeting is used as a principal forum for dialogue with all shareholders. Extraordinary Meetings are held 
as and when required. Before commencement of any general meetings, the Chairman of the meeting will inform shareholders 
of their rights to demand a poll vote. At the general meetings, the Board provides opportunities for shareholders to raise 
questions on the business activities of the Group, agenda of the meetings and its proposed resolutions. The Chairman 
then facilitates the discussions with shareholders and provides further information in response to shareholders’ queries. The 
Board encourages all shareholders to attend the forthcoming Company’s Annual General Meeting and to participate in the 
proceedings.

This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board dated 12 July 2017. 
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The Directors are required by the Companies Act 2016 (”the Act”) to prepare financial statements for each financial year 
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company at the end of the financial year and the 
profit or loss of the Group and the Company for the financial year. As required by the Act and the Listing Requirements of 
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the applicable approved 
accounting standards in Malaysia and the provisions of the Act. 

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 set out on pages 49 to 
115, the Group has used the appropriate accounting policies, consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent 
judgments and estimates. The Directors have responsibility for ensuring that the Group and the Company keep accounting 
records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Group and the Company which enable them to 
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Act. The Directors have general responsibility for taking such steps as 
are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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Pursuant to Paragraph 15.26(b) of the Main Market Listing Requirements (“MMLR”) of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad 
(“Bursa Securities”), the Board of Directors (“Board”) of Emico Holdings Berhad is pleased to provide the following Statement 
on the State of Risk Management and Internal Control (“Statement”) of Emico Holdings Berhad and its subsidiaries (“the 
Group”). The Statement also takes into consideration the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control: Guidelines 
for Directors of Listed Issuers (“Internal Control Guidelines”), a publication issued by Bursa Securities on the issuance of a 
statement about the state of risk management and internal control. 

BOARD RESPONSIBILITY

The Board is responsible for the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control system. 
This system is designed to ensure the Group’s key areas of risks are managed within an acceptable level  in order to increase 
the likelihood that the Group’s policies and business objectives will be achieved. Accordingly, it can only provide reasonable 
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement of management and financial information and records or against 
financial losses or fraud.

There is regular review of this process by the Board to ensure the effectiveness, adequacy and integrity of risk management 
and internal control system to safeguard the Group’s assets as guided by the Internal Control Guidelines.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Group has in place an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks faced by the Group. 

The Risk Management Committee (“RMC”) has been established to review the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management 
of the Group. Its main role is to review, on behalf of the Board, the system of risk management necessary to manage the 
significant risks faced by the Group and to present its findings to the Board. The RMC consists of 3 members comprising the 
Managing Director, the Deputy Managing Director and is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive Director.

The Audit Committee is responsible to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group. 
Its main role in risk management is to review, on behalf of the Board, the system of internal control necessary to manage the 
significant risks faced by the Group and to present its findings to the Board.

The Audit Committee is assisted by the internal auditors, whose role is to review the internal control systems.

Senior Management and heads of departments are delegated with the responsibility to manage identified risks within defined 
parameters. Meetings are held at least once quarterly to discuss key operational issues, business performance matters 
including risks and related mitigating responses, when necessary. The risks discussed involved operational risks, financial risks 
and human resource risks. Any significant risks will be communicated to the RMC members.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Board acknowledges the importance of internal audit function and has engaged the services of an independent 
professional consulting firm as internal auditor to provide much of the assurance it requires regarding the effectiveness as 
well as the adequacy and integrity of the Group’s system of internal control.
 
The internal audit function provides assurance on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system 
through regular monitoring and reviewing of the internal control processes across the Group.

The annual internal audit plan is reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee. The scope of the audit plan encompasses 
frequency and extent on the review of operational procedures of the Business units throughout the Group.

Internal audit visits are undertaken to evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control 
system, make recommendations for improvements to the system of internal control and ensure that the said recommendations 
are implemented expeditiously. Significant audit findings are tabled at the Audit Committee meeting for deliberation. 
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KEY ELEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

Apart from risk management and internal audit, the Group has put in place the following key elements of internal control:

•	 Organisation structure with defined scopes of responsibility, clear lines of accountability, and appropriate levels of 
delegated authority;

•	 Documented internal policies and procedures for operational, financial and human resource management, which is 
subject to regular review and improvement;

•	 Comprehensive business planning and budgeting process where operating units prepare budgets for the coming year 
which are approved both at operating unit level and by the Board;

•	 Monthly monitoring of results against budget, with major variances being followed up and management action taken, 
where necessary; 

•	 Quarterly Board and Audit Committee meetings; and
•	 Monthly visits to operating units by members of the Board and Senior Management.

DISASTER RECOVERY PLAN

The Group has implemented a disaster recovery plan to ensure critical data, application and complete system are protected 
across its business segment in the event of a MIS failure.

REVIEW OF STATEMENT BY THE EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The external auditors have reviewed this Statement in accordance to Paragraph 15.23 of the MMLR of Bursa Securities. 
Based on their review, the external auditors have reported to the Board that nothing has come to their attention that causes 
them to believe that this Statement intended to be included in the Annual Report is not prepared, in all material aspects, in 
accordance with the disclosures required by paragraphs 41 and 42 of the Internal Control Guidelines, nor the Statement is 
factually inaccurate.

CONCLUSION

The Board is of the view that the risk management and internal control systems are in place and satisfactory for the financial 
year under review and up to the date of this Statement for inclusion in the Annual Report. It has not resulted in any material 
losses, contingencies or uncertainties that would require disclosure in the Company’s Annual Report. The Board has received 
assurance from the Managing Director and the Deputy Managing Director that to the best of their knowledge that the 
Group’s risk management and internal control systems are operating adequately and effectively, in all material aspects, 
throughout the financial year under review and up to the date of this Statement.  

The Board recognises that the development of risk management and internal control system is an ongoing process. Therefore, 
the Board will continue to improve and enhance the systems of internal control and risk management.

This Statement is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board dated 12 July 2017.
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Other Compliance Statements

1. Utilisation of Proceeds
There was no capital raising exercise carried out by the Company during the financial year ended 31 March 2017.

2. Audit and Non-Audit Fees
The Audit fee paid/payable to external auditors by the Company and by the Group for the financial year ended 31 
March 2017 amounted to RM27,510 and RM81,490 respectively. 

The Non-Audit fee paid/payable to external auditors by the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2017 was 
RM8,700.

3. Material Contracts Involving Directors’, Chief Executive who is not a Director and Major Shareholders Interest
Other than those related party transactions disclosed in Note 34 to the financial statements, there were no material 
contracts entered into by the Company and its subsidiaries involving directors’, chief executive who is not a director 
and major shareholders’ interests, either subsisting at the end of the financial year or entered into since the previous 
financial year end. 
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company 
for the financial year ended 31 March 2017.	

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally involved in investment holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 10 
to the financial statements. There have been no significant changes in these nature of the activities during the financial year.

RESULTS

Group
RM

Company
RM

Profit for the financial year	  1,350,108 10,980,342

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the parent  1,603,925 10,980,342
Non-controlling interests  (253,817)  0

1,350,108  10,980,342

DIVIDEND													           
														            
No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since the end of the previous financial year. The Directors do not 
recommend any payment of dividend for the current financial year.

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS	

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than the effects of adoption 
of Companies Act, 2016 as disclosed in Notes 16 and 17 to the financial statements.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The Company did not issue any new shares or debentures during the financial year.

OPTIONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES

No options were granted to any person to take up unissued ordinary shares of the Company during the financial year.	
	
		
DIRECTORS

The Directors who have held for office since the date of the last report are:

Emico Holdings Berhad

Lim Teik Hian
Jimmy Ong Chin Keng
Lim Teck Chye
Wong Sew Yun
Ng Chee Kong
Wong Thai Sun

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
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DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Subsidiaries of Emico Holdings Berhad

Tan Chin Peng
Lim Poh Hoon
Abdul Rahman Bin Haji Din
Lim Poh Leng
YB Nor Saidi Bin Nanyan

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS 

The Directors holding office at the end of the financial year and their beneficial interests in the ordinary shares of the Company 
and of its related corporations during the financial year ended 31 March 2017 as recorded in the Register of Directors’ 
Shareholdings kept by the Company under Section 59 of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia were as follows:	

Number of ordinary shares
 Balance as at

1-4-2016 Bought Sold
Balance as at 

31-3-2017

Shares in the Company
Direct interests:

Lim Teik Hian 52,000 0 0 52,000
Wong Sew Yun 895,859 0 0 895,859
Lim Teck Chye 2,436,130 8,411,217 0 10,847,347

Indirect interests:	
Lim Teik Hian 26,830,959 0 0 26,830,959
Lim Teck Chye 24,446,829 0  (8,411,217) 16,035,612

	
By virtue of Section 8(4) of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia, Lim Teik Hian and Lim Teck Chye are deemed to be 
interested in the ordinary shares of all the subsidiaries to the extent the Company has an interest.	

The interest and deemed interests in the ordinary shares of its non-wholly subsidiary, held by Lim Teck Chye and Jimmy Ong 
Chin Keng at the end of the financial year were as follows:	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
							     

Number of ordinary shares
 Balance as at

1-4-2016 Bought Sold
Balance as at

31-3-2017

Subsidiary
- NEB Development Berhad 1,000,000 0 0 1,000,000

Direct interests:
Lim Teck Chye

Subsidiary
- Mercu Tanah Langkawi Sdn. Bhd.	

Direct interests:	
Jimmy Ong Chin Keng  40,000 0 0 40,000

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Cont’d)
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DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS	
									       
Since the end of the previous financial year, none of the Directors have received or become entitled to receive any benefit 
(other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by the Directors as 
shown in the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the Director 
or with a firm of which the Director is a member, or with a company in which the Director has a substantial financial interest 
other than the transactions entered into in the ordinary course of business with companies in which the Directors of the 
Company have substantial financial interests as disclosed in Note 34 to the financial statements.				  
	
There were no arrangements during and at the end of the financial year, to which the Company is a party, which had the 
object of enabling the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company 
or any other body corporate.	

CAPITAL REDUCTION	

On 17 March 2017, the Company completed a capital reduction exercise pursuant to Section 116(1) of the Companies Act, 
2016 in Malaysia to reduce the issued and paid up ordinary shares in the share capital of the Company via the cancellation of 
the issued and paid up share capital of RM86,333,869.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Fees and other benefits of the Directors who held office during the financial year ended 31 March 2017 are as follows:

Group Company
2017
RM

2016
RM

2017
RM

2016
RM

Fees  180,000 240,000 120,000 120,000
Salaries  1,176,673 1,040,050 473,438 414,150
Bonus 121,004 159,150  45,705  84,974
Others  232,377  202,282  72,854  64,417

 1,710,054  1,641,482 711,997 683,541

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION REGARDING THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

(I)	 AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

(a)	 Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the Directors took reasonable 
steps:

(i)	 to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making 
of provision for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that there were no known bad debts and that 
adequate provision had been made for doubtful debts; and	

(ii)	 to ensure that any current assets other than debts, which were unlikely to realise their book values in the 
ordinary course of business had been written down to their estimated realisable values.

(b)	 In the opinion of the Directors, the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial 
year have not been substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Cont’d)
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION REGARDING THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

(II)	 FROM THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO THE DATE OF THIS REPORT

(c)	 The Directors are not aware of any circumstances:

(i)	 which would necessitate the written off for bad debts or render the amount of the provision for doubtful 
debts in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company inadequate to any material extent; 

(ii)	 which would render the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of 
the Company misleading; and

(iii)	 which have arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities 
of the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate.

(d)	 In the opinion of the Directors:

(i)	 there has not arisen any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature which is likely to affect 
substantially the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial year in which 
this report is made; and

(ii)	 no contingent or other liability has become enforceable, or is likely to become enforceable, within the 
period of twelve (12) months after the end of the financial year which would or may affect the ability of the 
Group and of the Company to meet their obligations as and when they fall due.			 

(III)	 AS AT THE DATE OF THIS REPORT	

(e)	 There are no charges on the assets of the Group and of the Company which have arisen since the end of the 
financial year to secure the liabilities of any other person.

							     
(f)	 There are no contingent liabilities of the Group and of the Company which have arisen since the end of the 

financial year.	
			 
(g)	 The Directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial 

statements which would render any amount stated in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company 
misleading.	

AUDITORS		
		
The auditors, BDO, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.	
				  
Auditors’ remuneration of the Company and its subsidiaries for the financial year ended 31 March 2017 amounted to 
RM27,510 and RM81,490 respectively.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Directors. 

Lim Teik Hian	 	 	 	 	 	 Jimmy Ong Chin Keng	 	
Director							      Director					  

Penang	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
12 July 2017	
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In the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 49 to 114 have been drawn up in accordance with 
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 
March 2017 and of the financial performance and cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the financial year then 
ended.

In the opinion of the Directors, the information set out in Note 39 to the financial statements on page 115 has been compiled 
in accordance with the Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the 
Context of Disclosures Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirement, issued by the Malaysian Institute of 
Accountants, and presented based on the format prescribed by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

On behalf of the Board,

Lim Teik Hian	 	 	 	 	 	 Jimmy Ong Chin Keng	 	
Director							      Director						   

Penang	
12 July 2017

STATUTORY DECLARATION
I, Jimmy Ong Chin Keng, being the Director primarily responsible for the financial management of Emico Holdings Berhad, 
do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on pages 49 to 115 are, to the best of my knowledge 
and belief, correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the 
provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared 
by the abovenamed at Georgetown 
in the State of Penang this 12 July 
2017 Jimmy Ong Chin Keng

Before me,

Commissioner for Oaths	

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Emico Holdings Berhad, which comprise the statements of financial position as 
at 31 March 2017 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, 
statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the financial year then 
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 49 
to 114. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of 
the Company as at 31 March 2017 and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the financial year then ended in 
accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (‘MFRSs’), International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs’) and 
the requirements of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on 
Auditing (‘ISAs’). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct and 
Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (‘By-Laws’) and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ 
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (‘IESBA Code’), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 
statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit 
of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Recoverability of trade receivables

As at 31 March 2017, trade receivables of the Group amounted to RM12,441,617 and the associated impairment losses of 
trade receivables was RM367,721. The details of trade receivables and their credit risk have been disclosed in Note 14 and 
Note 37(i) to the financial statements.

Management recognised allowances for impairment losses on trade receivables based on specific known facts or circumstances 
on customers’ abilities to pay.

The determination of whether the trade receivables are recoverable involves significant management judgement and inherent 
subjectivity given the uncertainty regarding the ability of the trade receivables to settle their debts. We focused on the audit 
risk that the trade receivables may be overstated and hence, further impairment losses may be required.

	

TO THE MEMBERS OF EMICO HOLDINGS BERHAD 
(Company No. 230326-D) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
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Key Audit Matters (Cont’d)

Audit response

Our audit procedures included the following:

(a)	 assessed the recoverability of trade receivables by reference to their historical bad debt expense, ageing profiles of the 
counter parties and past historical repayment trends; and							     
	

(b)	 assessed cash receipts subsequent to the end of the reporting period for its effect in reducing amounts outstanding as 
at the end of the reporting period. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the Company and our 
auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company 
that give a true and fair view in accordance with MFRSs, IFRSs, and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia. 
The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements of the Group and of the Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing the ability 
of the Group and of the Company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or 
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF EMICO HOLDINGS BERHAD (Cont’d)
(Company No. 230326-D) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia)



47Annual Report  2017 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Cont’d)

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and ISAs, we exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:	

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.	

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control of the 
Group and of the Company.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the Directors.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the ability of the Group or of the Company to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of 
the Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Group or the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

•	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities 
within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on 
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit 
of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current financial year and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia, we report that the subsidiaries of which we 
have not acted as auditors, are disclosed in Note 10 to the financial statements. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
 TO THE MEMBERS OF EMICO HOLDINGS BERHAD (Cont’d)
(Company No. 230326-D) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
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Other Reporting Responsibilities

The supplementary information set out in Note 39 to the financial statements is disclosed to meet the requirement of Bursa 
Malaysia Securities Berhad and is not part of the financial statements. The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the 
supplementary information in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised 
Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by 
the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (‘MIA Guidance’) and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. In our opinion, 
the supplementary information is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the MIA Guidance and the directive 
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Other Matters 

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the Companies Act, 
2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

BDO	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Koay Theam Hock	 	 	 	 	
AF: 0206	 	 	 	 	 	 02141/04/2019 J 		 	 	 	 	
Chartered Accountants					     Chartered Accountant				  
	

Penang
12 July 2017

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF EMICO HOLDINGS BERHAD (Cont’d)
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
 AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Group Company

Note
2017
RM

2016
RM

2017
RM

2016
RM

ASSETS	

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 7  22,939,774 23,628,137 0 0
Investment property 8  177,667  184,167 0 0
Goodwill on consolidation	 9 551,552  551,552 0 0
Investments in subsidiaries	 10 0 0  39,903,038  27,996,308
Deferred tax assets 12  88,900  327,000 0 0

 23,757,893  24,690,856 39,903,038 27,996,308

Current assets
Inventories 13  36,640,205 40,245,453 0 0
Trade and other receivables 14 15,520,592  17,931,041  7,202,652 8,184,194
Current tax assets 344,176 101,715 0 0
Cash and bank balances 15 4,357,471 8,597,476  140,612 93,155 

56,862,444 66,875,685 7,343,264 8,277,349

TOTAL ASSETS 80,620,337  91,566,541  47,246,302  36,273,657

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity attributable to owners of the 
parent

Share capital 16 17,329,434  95,926,521 17,329,434  95,926,521
Reserves	 17  11,811,824 19,558,174 0 7,736,782
Retained earnings/(Accumulated losses) 13,400,144  (74,537,650) 16,038,637 (81,275,574)

 42,541,402  40,947,045 33,368,071 22,387,729

Non-controlling interests 10 8,040,389 8,294,206 0 0

TOTAL EQUITY 50,581,791  49,241,251  33,368,071  22,387,729

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Cont’d)

 AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Group Company

Note
2017
RM

2016
RM

2017
RM

2016
RM

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Borrowing 18 2,421,609  3,652,685 0 0
Deferred tax liabilities 12  4,705,318  4,932,005 0 0

 7,126,927 8,584,690 0 0

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 24 15,307,990 19,042,346 13,752,131 13,759,828
Borrowings 18  6,446,722 7,926,657 0 0
Deferred revenue 25  839,297 5,827,904 0 0
Current tax liabilities 317,610 943,693 126,100 126,100

22,911,619 33,740,600 13,878,231 13,885,928

TOTAL LIABILITIES 30,038,546 42,325,290 13,878,231 13,885,928

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  80,620,337  91,566,541  47,246,302 36,273,657

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.					   
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STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND 
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017		
						    

Group Company

Note
2017
RM

2016
RM

2017
RM

2016
RM

Revenue	 27  70,283,593  80,018,107  180,000 240,000
Other income 28 616,788  1,909,569 12,079,797 2,000,175
Property development expenditure 

recognised  (9,152,741) (13,430,754)  0 0
Changes in inventories of finished goods 

and work-in-progress  (319,616) 923,754 0 0
Purchase of finished goods  (10,436,429)  (20,658,754) 0 0
Raw materials and consumables used  (27,876,823)  (23,913,025) 0 0
Employee benefits expense 29 (10,478,161) (9,922,967) (735,997)  (707,541)
Depreciation and amortisation of property, 

plant and equipment  (1,931,322) (2,037,577) 0 0
Finance costs 30  (524,483)  (512,889)  (5) (8)
Other expenses  (7,450,774) (6,504,927)  (543,453) (430,909)
Profit before tax  2,730,032  5,870,537  10,980,342  1,101,717
Tax expense 31  (1,379,924) (1,824,514)  0  0
Profit for the financial year	 1,350,108  4,046,023  10,980,342 1,101,717

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Item that may be reclassified 
subsequently to profit or loss

Foreign currency translations (9,568)  (14,268) 0 0

Items that will not reclassified 
subsequently to profit or loss

Gross revaluation increase of properties 0  1,319,031 0 0
Deferred tax relating to revalued properties 0  (316,568) 0 0

0  1,002,463 0 0

 (9,568) 988,195 0 0

Total comprehensive income 1,340,540 5,034,218 10,980,342 1,101,717

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the parent 1,603,925 3,665,163 10,980,342  1,101,717
Non-controlling interests 10  (253,817)  380,860  0  0

1,350,108  4,046,023  10,980,342  1,101,717

Total comprehensive income attributable 
to:	

Owners of the parent  1,594,357  4,653,358 10,980,342 1,101,717
Non-controlling interests	 (253,817)  380,860  0  0

 1,340,540 5,034,218 10,980,342 1,101,717

Earnings per ordinary share attributable 
to equity holders of the Company 
(Sen):

Basic 32(a) 1.67 3.82
Diluted 32(b) 1.67 3.82

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.					   
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017		
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Cont’d)
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017		
						    

Non-distributable

Note

Share 
capital

RM

Share 
Premium

RM

(Accumulated 
losses)/

Retained 
earning 

RM
Total equity

RM

Company

Balance as at 1 April 2015 95,926,521 7,736,782 (82,377,291) 21,286,012

Profit for the financial year 0 0  1,101,717  1,101,717
Other comprehensive income, 

net of tax 0 0 0 0
Total comprehensive income  0 0 1,101,717 1,101,717

Balance as at 31 March 2016 95,926,521  7,736,782 (81,275,574) 22,387,729

Balance as at 1 April 2016  95,926,521 7,736,782 (81,275,574) 22,387,729

Profit for the financial year	 0 0 10,980,342 10,980,342
Other comprehensive income, 

net of tax 0 0 0 0
Total comprehensive income 0 0 10,980,342 10,980,342

Transactions with owners
Capital reduction	 16 (86,333,869) 0 86,333,869 0
Total transactions with owners  (86,333,869) 0  86,333,869 0

Effects of the new Companies 
Act, 2016 16 7,736,782 (7,736,782)  0  0

Balance as at 31 March 2017 17,329,434 0 16,038,637 33,368,071

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017		
						    

Group Company

Note
2017
RM

2016
RM

2017
RM

2016
RM

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax 2,730,032  5,870,537 10,980,342 1,101,717

Adjustments for:	
Amortisation of investment property 8 6,500 6,500 0 0
Depreciation of property, plant and 

equipment 7 1,924,822 2,031,077 0 0
Gain on disposal of property, plant 

and equipment 0 (54,017) 0 0
Impairment losses on:
- trade receivables 14(g) 5,704 26,145 0 0
- other receivables 14(g) 17,479 0 0 0
- investment in subsidiaries 10(a) 0 0 173,067 281,545
Property, plant and equipment 

written off 7 6,459 5 0 0
Reversal of impairment losses on:
- investment in a subsidiary 10(b) 0 0  (12,079,797) 0
- trade and other receivables 14(g) 0  (4,222) 0 (2,000,000)
Unrealised loss on foreign exchange 0 85,771 0 0
Unrealised gain on foreign exchange 28 (109,734) 0 0 0
Interest expense 30 524,483 512,889 5 8
Interest income 28  (88,706) (151,209) 0 (175)
Operating profit/(loss) before 

changes in working capital 5,017,039 8,323,476 (926,383) (616,905)

Changes in working capital:
Inventories 3,605,248 (97,444) 0  0
Trade and other receivables  2,387,266 (1,269,004) 981,542 2,015,962
Deferred revenue  (4,988,607) (544,095) 0  0
Trade and other payables  (3,734,356) (1,370,019) (7,697) (1,465,359)
Cash generated from/(used in) 

operations 2,286,590 5,042,914 47,462 (66,302)
Interest received 88,706 151,209 0 175
Tax paid (2,256,889) (1,488,603) 0  0
Tax refunded 19,834  16,652 0  0
Net cash from/(used in) operating 

activities 138,241  3,722,172 47,462 (66,127)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposal of property, 
plant and equipment 0 99,518 0  0

Purchase of property, plant and 
equipment 7(b)  (1,090,510) (697,951) 0  0

Net cash used in investing activities (1,090,510) (598,433) 0  0

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017		
						    

Group Company

Note
2017
RM

2016
RM

2017
RM

2016
RM

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES

Changes in deposits pledged to 
licensed banks  35,274 422,417 0 0

Drawdowns of bank borrowings 0 10,992,812 0 0
Interest paid  (524,483) (512,889)  (5)  (8)
Repayments of:
- bank borrowings (1,879,994)  (10,043,181) 0 0
- hire purchase payables  (248,737)  (331,894) 0 0
Net cash (used in)/from financing 

activities (2,617,940) 527,265 (5)  (8)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and 
cash equivalents  (3,570,209) 3,651,004 47,457 (66,135)

Effects of exchange rate changes on 
cash and cash equivalents  76,058  (107,940) 0 0

Cash and cash equivalents at 
beginning of financial year 6,499,180 2,956,116 93,155 159,290

Cash and cash equivalents at end of 
financial year 15(e)  3,005,029 6,499,180 140,612 93,155 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.					   
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 31 MARCH 2017

1.	 CORPORATE INFORMATION

	 The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia and is listed on the Main 
Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Board.

	 The registered office of the Company is located at 51-21-A, Menara BHL Bank, Jalan Sultan Ahmad Shah, 10050 
Penang.

	 The principal place of business of the Company is located at 18, Lebuhraya Kampung Jawa, 11900 Bayan Lepas, 
Penang.

	 The consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2017 comprise the Company and its 
subsidiaries. These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (‘RM’), which is also the functional currency 
of the Company.

	 The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution by the Board of Directors on 12 July 
2017. 

2.	 PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

	 The Company is principally involved in investment holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in 
Note 10 to the financial statements. There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the 
financial year.

3.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION

	 The financial statements of the Group and of the Company set out on pages 49 to 114 have been prepared in accordance 
with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (‘MFRSs’), International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs’) and the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia. However, Note 39 to the financial statements set out on page 115 
has been prepared in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised 
Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as 
issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (‘MIA Guidance’) and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1	 Basis of accounting

	 The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared under the historical cost 
convention except as otherwise stated in the financial statements.

	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with MFRSs and IFRSs requires the Directors to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses and 
disclosure of contingent assets and contingent liabilities. In addition, the Directors are also required to exercise 
their judgement in the process of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving such judgements, estimates 
and assumptions are disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements. Although these estimates and assumptions 
are based on the Directors’ best knowledge of events and actions, actual results could differ from those estimates.

4.2	 Basis of consolidation

	 The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries. 
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the 
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group 
controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

	 (a)	 Power over the investee;
	 (b)	 Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
	 (c)	 The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

 31 MARCH 2017

4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

4.2	 Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

	 If the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant 
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a)	 The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
(b)	 Rights arising from other contractual agreements; and
(c)	 The voting rights of the Group and potential voting rights.

	 Intragroup balances, transactions, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised gains arising 
from transactions with associates are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the interest of the Group 
in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that 
there is no impairment.

	 The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as that of the Company, 
using consistent accounting policies. Where necessary, accounting policies of subsidiaries are changed to ensure 
consistency with the policies adopted by the other entities in the Group.

	 Non-controlling interests represent equity in subsidiaries that are not attributable, directly or indirectly, to owners 
of the parent, and is presented separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position, separately from equity attributable 
to owners of the Company. Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to 
the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

	 The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are 
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which 
control is transferred to the Group up to the effective date on which control ceases, as appropriate. Assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the financial year are included in 
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until the 
date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

	 Changes in the Company owners’ ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are 
accounted for as equity transactions. In such circumstances, the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference 
between the amount by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of consideration paid or 
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the parent.

	 If the Group losses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between:

(i)	 The aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest; and
(ii)	 The previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-

controlling interests.

	 Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for 
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings) in the same manner as would be 
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of. The fair value of any investments retained in the 
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent 
accounting under MFRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, where applicable, the cost 
on initial recognition of an investment in associate or joint venture.

4.3	 Business combinations

	 Business combinations are accounted for by applying the acquisition method of accounting.

	 Identifiable assets acquired, liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured 
at their fair value at the acquisition date, except that: 

(a)	 Deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are 
recognised and measured in accordance with MFRS 112 Income Taxes and MFRS 119 Employee Benefits 
respectively;
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4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

4.3	 Business combinations (Cont’d)

	 Identifiable assets acquired, liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured 
at their fair value at the acquisition date, except that: (Cont’d) 

(b)	 Liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment transactions of the acquiree or the 
replacement by the Group of an acquiree’s share-based payment transactions are measured in accordance 
with MFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

(c)	 Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with MFRS 5 Non-current Assets 
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that Standard.

	 Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the 
serviced are received.

	 Any contingent consideration payable is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Measurement period 
adjustments to contingent consideration are dealt with as follows:

(a)	 If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it is not remeasured and settlement is accounted for 
within equity.

(b)	 Subsequent changes to contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument 
within the scope of MFRS 139 are recognised either in profit or loss or in other comprehensive income in 
accordance with MFRS 139. All other subsequent changes are recognised in profit or loss.

	 In a business combination achieved in stages, previously held equity interests in the acquiree are re-measured to 
fair value at the acquisition date and any corresponding gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

	 Components of non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their 
holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially measured at the 
present ownership instruments’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable 
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests shall be measured at their acquisition-date fair 
values, unless another measurement basis is required by MFRSs. The choice of measurement basis is made on 
an combination-by-combination basis. Subsequent to initial recognition, the carrying amount of non-controlling 
interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ share of 
subsequent changes in equity.

	 Any excess of the sum of the fair value of the consideration transferred in the business combination, the amount 
of non-controlling interest in the acquiree (if any), and the fair value of the previously held equity interest of the 
Group in the acquiree (if any), over the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded 
as goodwill in the statement of financial position. The accounting policy for goodwill is set out in Note 4.10 to the 
financial statements. In instances where the latter amount exceeds the former, the excess is recognised as a gain 
on bargain purchase in profit or loss on the acquisition date.

4.4	 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

	 All items of property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost. Cost includes expenditure that is directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

	
	 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 

only when the cost is incurred and it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the asset would 
flow to the Group and the cost of the asset could be measured reliably. The carrying amount of parts that are 
replaced is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised 
in profit or loss as incurred. Cost also comprises the initial estimate of dismantling and removing the asset and 
restoring the site on which it is located for which the Group is obligated to incur when the asset is acquired, if 
applicable.

	 Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of 
the asset and which has different useful life, is depreciated separately.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

 31 MARCH 2017
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

 31 MARCH 2017

4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

4.4	 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Cont’d)

	 After initial recognition, property, plant and equipment except for long term leasehold land and buildings are 
stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. The long term leasehold 
land and buildings are revalued with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ 
materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting period. The surplus 
arising from such revaluations is credited to shareholders’ equity as a revaluation reserve, net of deferred tax, if 
any, and any subsequent deficit is offset against such surplus to the extent of a previous increase for the same 
property.  In all other cases, the deficit would be charged to profit or loss. For a revaluation increase subsequent 
to a revaluation deficit of the same asset, the surplus is recognised as income to the extent that it reverses the 
deficit previously recognised as an expense with the balance of increase credited to revaluation reserve.

	 Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of the assets to their residual values on a straight line 
basis over their estimated useful lives. The principal depreciation period and rates are as follows:

Buildings 2%
Long term leasehold land 55 years
Plant and machinery 10% - 20%
Moulds 10% - 20%
Motor vehicles 10% - 33%
Office equipment, furniture and fittings 8% - 20%
Tools, implements and equipment 10% - 20%
Electrical installation and renovation 10% - 20%

	 At the end of each reporting period, the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is assessed 
for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying amount may not be recoverable. 
A write down is made if the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount (see Note 4.10 to the financial 
statements on impairment of non-financial assets).

	 The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to 
ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates and the 
expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the items of property, plant 
and equipment. If expectations differ from previous estimates, the changes are accounted for as a change in an 
accounting estimate.

	 The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, 
and the carrying amount is included in profit or loss and the revaluation surplus related to those assets, if any, is 
transferred directly to retained earnings.

4.5	 Investment properties

	 Investment properties are properties which are held to earn rental yields or for capital appreciation or for both 
and are not occupied by the Group. Investment properties also include properties that are being constructed or 
developed for future use as investment properties. Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including 
transaction costs, less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. 

	 Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount of the investment properties or recognised as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when the cost is incurred and it is probable that the future economic benefits associated 
with the asset would flow to the Group and the cost of the asset could be measured reliably. The carrying amount 
of parts that are replaced is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of investment properties are 
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Cost also comprises the initial estimate of dismantling and removing the 
asset and restoring the site on which it is located for which the Group is obligated to incur when the investment 
properties are acquired, if applicable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

 31 MARCH 2017

4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

4.5	 Investment properties (Cont’d)

	 After initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any 
accumulated impairment losses.

	 Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of the investment properties to their residual values on a straight 
line basis over their estimated useful lives. The principal depreciation period for the investment properties is fifty 
(50) years.

	 At the end of each reporting period, the carrying amount of an item of the investment properties are assessed for 
impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying amount may not be recoverable. 
A write down is made if the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount (see Note 4.10 to the financial 
statements on impairment of non-financial assets).

	 The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to 
ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates and the 
expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the investment properties. If 
expectations differ from previous estimates, the changes are accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

	 Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when they are permanently 
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The gains or losses arising 
from the retirement or disposal of investment property is determined as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss in the period of the 
retirement or disposal.

4.6	 Lease and hire purchase

(a)	 Finance lease and hire purchase

	 Assets acquired under finance leases and hire purchase which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership to the Group are recognised initially at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased assets or, if 
lower, the present value of minimum hire purchase payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. 
The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate 
implicit in the lease, if this is practicable to determine; if not, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate is used. 
Any initial direct costs incurred by the Group are added to the amount recognised as an asset.  The assets 
are capitalised as property, plant and equipment and the corresponding obligations are treated as liabilities. 
The property, plant and equipment capitalised are depreciated on the same basis as owned assets.

	 The minimum lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and the reduction of the outstanding 
liability. The finance charges are recognised in profit or loss over the period of the hire purchase term so as 
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining lease and hire purchase liabilities.

(b)	 Operating leases

	 A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership.

	 Lease payments under operating leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term.

4.7	 Investments

	 Subsidiaries	

	 A subsidiary is an entity in which the Group and the Company are exposed, or have rights, to variable returns 
from its involvement with the subsidiary and have the ability to affect those returns through its power over the 
subsidiary.

	 An investment in subsidiary, which is eliminated on consolidation, is stated in the Company’s separate financial 
statements at cost. Investments accounted for at cost shall be accounted for in accordance with MFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations when they are classified as held for sale (or included in 
a disposal group that is classified as held for sale) in accordance with MFRS 5.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

 31 MARCH 2017

4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

4.7	 Investments (Cont’d)

	 When control of a subsidiary is lost as a result of a transaction, event or other circumstance, the Group would 
derecognise all assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests at their carrying amount and to recognise the fair 
value of the consideration received. Any retained interest in the former subsidiary is recognised at its fair value at 
the date control is lost. The resulting difference is recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss.

4.8	 Goodwill

	 Goodwill recognised in a business combination is an asset at the acquisition date and is initially measured at cost 
being the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the 
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest (if any) in the entity over net of the 
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the 
Group’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets exceeds the sum of the consideration 
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously 
held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain 
purchase gain.  

	 After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.  Goodwill is not 
amortised but instead tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount could be impaired. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the 
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

4.9	 Inventories 

(a)	 Consumable products

	 Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

	 Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out formula. Cost of raw materials comprises all costs of purchase 
plus the cost of bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.  The cost of work-in-
progress and finished goods includes the cost of raw materials, direct labour, other direct cost and a 
proportion of production overheads based on normal operating capacity of the production facilities.  The 
cost of completed properties held for sale comprises cost associated with the acquisition of land, direct 
costs and appropriate proportions of common costs.

	 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs 
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(b)	 Developed properties held for sale

	 Developed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

	 Cost consists of costs associated with the acquisition of land, direct costs, appropriate proportions of 
common costs attributable to developing the properties to completion and borrowing costs.

(c)	 Properties under development

	 Properties under development comprise costs associated with the acquisition of land and all costs that 
are directly attributable to development activities or that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to such 
activities. Borrowing costs are capitalised in accordance with the accounting policy on borrowing costs.

	 Cost of properties under development not recognised as an expense is recognised as an asset and is stated 
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

(d)	 Land held for property development

	 Land held for property development is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

	 Cost associated with the acquisition of land includes the purchase price of the land, professional fees, stamp 
duties, commissions, conversion fees and other relevant levies.
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4.10	 Impairment of non-financial assets	

	 The carrying amount of assets, except for financial assets (excluding investments in subsidiaries), inventories and  
deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication 
of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

	 Goodwill that has an indefinite useful life is tested annually for impairment or more frequently if events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the goodwill might be impaired.

	 The recoverable amount of an asset is estimated for an individual asset. Where it is not possible to estimate the 
recoverable amount of the individual asset, the impairment test is carried out on the cash generating unit (‘CGU’) 
to which the asset belongs. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is from the acquisition date, allocated to 
each of the Group’s CGU or groups of CGU that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination 
giving rise to the goodwill irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those 
units or groups of units.

	 Goodwill acquired in a business combination shall be tested for impairment as part of the impairment testing of 
CGU to which it relates. The CGU to which goodwill is allocated shall represent the lowest level within the Group 
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and not larger than an operating segment 
determined in accordance with MFRS 8 Operating Segments.	

	 The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and its value in use.

	 In estimating value in use, the estimated future cash inflows and outflows to be derived from continuing use of 
the asset and from its ultimate disposal are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the 
future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when the 
carrying amount of the asset or the CGU, including the goodwill, exceeds the recoverable amount of the asset or 
the CGU. The total impairment loss is allocated, first, to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to 
the CGU and then to the other assets of the CGU on a pro-rata basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the 
CGU

	 The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately except for the impairment on a revalued asset 
where the impairment loss is recognised directly against the revaluation reserve to the extent of the surplus 
credited from the previous revaluation for the same asset with the excess of the impairment loss charged to profit 
or loss.

	 An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods. An impairment loss for other assets is 
reversed if, and only if, there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the assets’ recoverable 
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.

	 An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been 
recognised.

	 Such reversals are recognised as income immediately in profit or loss except for the reversal of an impairment loss 
on a revalued asset where the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase and credited to 
the revaluation reserve account of the same asset. However, to the extent that an impairment loss in the same 
revalued asset was previously recognised in profit or loss, a reversal of that impairment loss is also recognised in 
profit or loss.

4.11	 Financial instruments

	 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one enterprise and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another enterprise.

	 A financial asset is any asset that is cash, an equity instrument of another enterprise, a contractual right to receive 
cash or another financial asset from another enterprise, or a contractual right to exchange financial assets or 
financial liabilities with another enterprise under conditions that are potentially favourable to the Group.
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4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

4.11	 Financial instruments (Cont’d)

	 A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to 
another enterprise, or a contractual obligation to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another 
enterprise under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the Group.

	 Financial instruments are recognised on the statement of financial position when the Group has become a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument. At initial recognition, a financial instrument is recognised at fair value 
plus, in the case of a financial instrument not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issuance of the financial instrument.	

	 An embedded derivative is separated from the host contract and accounted for as a derivative if, and only if the 
economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative is not closely related to the economic characteristics 
and risks of the host contract, a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative meets the 
definition of a derivative, and the hybrid instrument is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(a) 	 Financial assets	

	 A financial asset is classified into the following four (4) categories after initial recognition for the purpose of 
subsequent measurement:

(i) 	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss comprise financial assets that are held for trading 
(i.e. financial assets acquired principally for the purpose of resale in the near term), derivatives 
(both, freestanding and embedded) and financial assets that were specifically designated into this 
classification upon initial recognition.

	 Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets classified as fair value through profit or loss are 
measured at fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets 
classified as fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss. Net gains or losses on 
financial assets classified as fair value through profit or loss exclude foreign exchange gains and losses, 
interest and dividend income.  Such income is recognised separately in profit or loss as components of 
other income or other operating losses.

	 However, derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of unquoted equity instruments 
that do not have a quoted market price in an active market are recognised at cost.

(ii) 	 Held-to-maturity investments

	 Financial assets classified as held-to-maturity comprise non-derivative financial assets with fixed or 
determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold 
to maturity.

	 Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets classified as held-to-maturity are measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains or losses on financial assets classified as held-
to-maturity are recognised in profit or loss when the financial assets are derecognised or impaired, and 
through the amortisation process.

(iii) 	 Loans and receivables	

	 Financial assets classified as loans and receivables comprise non-derivative financial assets with fixed 
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.

	 Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets classified as loans and receivables are measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains or losses on financial assets classified as 
loans and receivables are recognised in profit or loss when the financial assets are derecognised or 
impaired, and through the amortisation process.	
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4.11	 Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(a) 	 Financial assets (Cont’d)

(iv) 	 Available-for-sale financial assets

	 Financial assets classified as available-for-sale comprise non-derivative financial assets that are 
designated as available for sale or are not classified as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity 
investments or financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

	 Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets classified as available-for-sale are measured at 
fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets classified as 
available-for-sale are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, except for impairment losses 
and foreign exchange gains and losses, until the financial asset is derecognised, at which time the 
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are recognised in 
profit or loss.  However, interest calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in profit 
or loss whilst dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when 
the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

	 Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balances and deposits with banks and highly liquid 
investments which have an insignificant risk of changes in fair value with original maturities of three 
(3) months or less, and are used by the Group and the Company in the management of their short 
term commitments. For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are 
presented net of bank overdrafts and pledged deposits.

	 A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual right to receive cash flows from the financial 
asset has expired. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the 
carrying amount and the sum of consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any 
new liability assumed) and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in other 
comprehensive income shall be recognised in profit or loss.

	 A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset under a contract whose terms 
require delivery of the asset within the time frame established generally by regulation or marketplace 
convention.  A regular way purchase or sale of financial assets shall be recognised and derecognised, 
as applicable, using trade date accounting.

(b) 	 Financial liabilities

	 Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual 
arrangement. A financial liability is classified into the following two (2) categories after initial recognition for 
the purpose of subsequent measurement:

(i) 	 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

	 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss comprise financial liabilities that are held for 
trading, derivatives (both, freestanding and embedded) and financial liabilities that were specifically 
designated into this classification upon initial recognition.  

	 Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities classified as fair value through profit or loss are 
measured at fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial liabilities 
classified as fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss. Net gains or losses 
on financial liabilities classified as fair value through profit or loss exclude foreign exchange gains 
and losses, interest and dividend income. Such income is recognised separately in profit or loss as 
components of other income or other operating losses.

(ii) 	 Other financial liabilities

	 Financial liabilities classified as other financial liabilities comprise non-derivative financial liabilities that 
are neither held for trading nor initially designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
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4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

4.11	 Financial instruments (Cont’d) 

(b) 	 Financial liabilities (Cont’d)

(ii) 	 Other financial liabilities (Cont’d)

	 Subsequent to initial recognition, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method. Gains or losses on other financial liabilities are recognised in profit or loss 
when the financial liabilities are derecognised and through the amortisation process.

	 A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, it is extinguished, i.e. when the obligation specified 
in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.  An exchange between an existing borrower and lender 
of debt instruments with substantially different terms are accounted for as an extinguishment of the original 
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the 
terms of an existing financial liability is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability 
and the recognition of a new financial liability.

	 Any difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability extinguished or transferred to another 
party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is 
recognised in profit or loss.

	 Any financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to 
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in 
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

	 The Group designates corporate guarantees given to banks for credit facilities granted to subsidiaries 
as insurance contracts as defined in MFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. The Group recognises these insurance 
contracts as recognised insurance liabilities when there is a present obligation, legal or constructive, as a 
result of a past event, when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits would 
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

	 At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether its recognised insurance liabilities are 
adequate, using current estimates of future cash flows under its insurance contracts. If this assessment 
shows that the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities is inadequate, the entire deficiency shall be 
recognised in profit or loss.

	 Recognised insurance liabilities are only removed from the statement of financial position when, and only 
when, it is extinguished via a discharge, cancellation or expiration.

(c) 	 Equity	

	 An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group and the 
Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are classified as equity instruments.

	 Ordinary shares are recorded at the nominal value. Transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted 
for as a deduction from equity, net of any related income tax benefit.  Otherwise, they are charged to profit 
or loss.

	 Interim dividends to shareholders are recognised in equity in the period in which they are declared. Final 
dividends are recognised upon the approval of shareholders in a general meeting.

	 The Group measures a liability to distribute non-cash assets as a dividend to the owners of the Company 
at the fair value of the assets to be distributed. The carrying amount of the dividend is remeasured at the 
end of each reporting period and at the settlement date, with any changes recognised directly in equity as 
adjustments to the amount of the distribution. On settlement of the transaction, the Group recognises the 
difference, if any, between the carrying amount of the assets distributed and the carrying amount of the 
liability in profit or loss.

	 When the Group repurchases its own shares, the shares repurchased would be accounted for using the 
treasury stock method.
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4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

4.11	 Financial instruments (Cont’d) 

(c) 	 Equity (Cont’d)	

	 Where the treasury stock method is applied, the shares repurchased and held as treasury shares shall be 
measured and carried at the cost of repurchase on initial recognition and subsequently. It shall not be 
revalued for subsequent changes in the fair value or market price of the shares.

	 The carrying amount of the treasury shares shall be offset against equity in the statement of financial position. 

	 No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the own 
equity instruments of the Company. If such shares are issued by resale, any difference between the sales 
consideration and the carrying amount is shown as a movement in equity.

4.12	 Impairment of financial assets

	 The Group assesses whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired at the end of each 
reporting period.

(a) 	 Held-to-maturity investments and loans and receivables

	 The Group collectively considers factors such as the probability of bankruptcy or significant financial 
difficulties of the receivable, and default or significant delay in payments by the receivable, to determine 
whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on held-to-maturity investments and loans 
and receivables has occurred. Other objective evidence of impairment include historical collection rates 
determined on an individual basis and observable changes in national or local economic conditions that are 
directly correlated with the historical default rates of receivables.

	 If any such objective evidence exists, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference between 
the financial asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the 
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

	 The carrying amount of held-to-maturity investments is directly reduced by the impairment loss whilst the 
carrying amount of loans and receivables are reduced through the use of an allowance account.

	 If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and it objectively relates to an event 
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to the 
extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. The 
amount of impairment reversed is recognised in profit or loss.

(b) 	 Available-for-sale financial assets

	 The Group collectively considers factors such as significant or prolonged decline in fair value below cost, 
significant financial difficulties of the issuer or obligor, and the disappearance of an active trading market as 
objective evidence that available-for-sale financial assets are impaired.

	 If any such objective evidence exists, an amount comprising the difference between the financial asset’s cost 
(net of any principal payment and amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment loss previously 
recognised in profit or loss, is transferred from equity to profit or loss.

	 Impairment losses in respect of unquoted equity instrument that is carried at cost is recognised in profit or 
loss and is measured as the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and the present value 
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.

	 Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments are not reversed in profit or loss in subsequent 
periods. Instead, any increase in the fair value subsequent to the impairment loss is recognised in other 
comprehensive income.

	
	 Impairment losses on available-for-sale debt investments are subsequently reversed to profit or loss if 

the increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after the 
recognition of the impairment loss in profit or loss.
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4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

4.13	Borrowing costs

	 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset is 
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset until when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the asset 
for its intended use or sale are complete, after which such expense is charged to profit or loss. A qualifying asset is 
an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. Capitalisation 
of borrowing cost is suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted.

	 The amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is the actual borrowing costs incurred on the borrowing 
during the period less any investment income on the temporary investment of the borrowing.

	 All other borrowing cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

4.14	Provisions

	 Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation, legal or constructive, as a result of a past event, 
and when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits would be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Group expects 
a provision to be reimbursed (for example, under an insurance contract), the reimbursement is recognised as a 
separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

	 If the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount of a provision would be discounted to its present 
value at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 
to the liability.

	 Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.  If it 
is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits would be required to settle the 
obligation, the provision would be reversed.

	 Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.  If the Group has a contract that is onerous, the present 
obligation under the contract shall be recognised and measured as a provision.

4.15	 Income taxes

	 Income taxes include all taxes on taxable profit. Income taxes also include other taxes and real property gains 
taxes payable on the disposal of properties.

	 Taxes in the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income comprise current tax and deferred tax.

(a) 	 Current tax

	 Current tax expenses are determined according to the tax laws of each jurisdiction in which the Group 
operates and include all taxes based upon the taxable profits and real property gains taxes payable on 
disposal of properties.

(b) 	 Deferred tax

	 Deferred tax is recognised in full using the liability method on temporary differences arising between the 
carrying amount of an asset or liability in the statement of financial position and its tax base.

	
	 Deferred tax is recognised for all temporary differences, unless the deferred tax arises from goodwill or the 

initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination and at the time 
of transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit.

	 A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits would be 
available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can 
be utilised. The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period. If 
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits would be available to allow the benefit of part or all 
of that deferred tax asset to be utilised, the carrying amount of the deferred tax asset would be reduced 
accordingly. When it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits would be available, such reductions 
would be reversed to the extent of the taxable profits.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

 31 MARCH 2017



69Annual Report  2017 

4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

4.15	 Income taxes (Cont’d)

(b) 	 Deferred tax (Cont’d)

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current 
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxation 
authority on either:

(i) 	 The same taxable entity; or 

(ii) 	 Different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, 
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant 
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

	 Deferred tax would be recognised as income or expense and included in the profit or loss for the period 
unless the tax relates to items that are credited or charged, in the same or a different period, directly to 
equity, in which case the deferred tax would be charged or credited directly to equity.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when 
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the announcement of tax rates and tax laws by the 
Government in the annual budgets which have the substantive effect of actual enactment by the end of each 
reporting period.

4.16	Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

	 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence would be confirmed 
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group 
or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources would be 
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability 
that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognise a contingent 
liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

	 A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events whose existence would be confirmed by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group. The 
Group does not recognise a contingent asset but discloses its existence where the inflows of economic benefits 
are probable, but not virtually certain.

	 In the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group under business combinations, contingent liabilities assumed are 
measured initially at their fair value at the acquisition date.

4.17	Employee benefits

(a) 	 Short term employee benefits	

	 Wages, salaries, social security contributions, paid annual leave, paid sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary 
benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed when employees have rendered their 
services to the Group.

	 Short term accumulating compensated absences such as paid annual leave are recognised as an expense 
when employees render services that increase their entitlement to future compensated absences. Short 
term non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave are recognised when the absences occur 
and they lapse if the current period’s entitlement is not used in full and do not entitle employees to a cash 
payment for unused entitlement on leaving the Group.

	 Bonuses are recognised as an expense when there is a present, legal or constructive obligation to make 
such payments, as a result of past events and when a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation.
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4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

4.17	Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(b) 	 Defined contribution plans	

	 The Company and its subsidiaries make contributions to a statutory provident fund. The contributions are 
recognised as a liability after deducting any contribution already paid and as an expense in the period in 
which the employees render their services.

4.18	 Foreign currencies

(a) 	 Functional and presentation currency

	 Items included in the financial statements of each of the entities of the Group are measured using the 
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The 
consolidated financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia, which is the functional and presentation 
currency of the Company.

(b) 	 Foreign currency translations and balances

	 Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into functional currency at rates of exchange ruling at the 
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies at the end of the reporting period 
are translated into functional currency at rates of exchange ruling at that date. All exchange differences 
arising from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from the translation of foreign currency 
monetary assets and liabilities are included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Non-monetary 
items initially denominated in foreign currencies, which are carried at historical cost, are translated using 
the historical rate as of the date of acquisition, and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value are 
translated using the exchange rate that existed when the values were determined for presentation currency 
purposes.

(c) 	 Foreign operations

	 Financial statements of foreign operations are translated at end of the reporting period exchange rates with 
respect to their assets and liabilities, and at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions with respect 
to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. All resulting translation differences are 
recognised as a separate component of equity.

	 In the consolidated financial statements, exchange differences arising from the translation of net investment 
in foreign operations are taken to equity. When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold, exchange 
differences that were recorded in equity are recognised in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on 
disposal.

	 Exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of the net investment of the Company in a 
foreign operation shall be recognised in profit or loss in the separate financial statements of the Company or 
the foreign operation, as appropriate. In the consolidated financial statements, such exchange differences 
shall be recognised initially as a separate component of equity and recognised in profit or loss upon disposal 
of the net investment.

	 Goodwill and fair value adjustments to the assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition of a foreign 
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the acquired entity and translated at the exchange rate 
ruling at the end of each reporting period.

4.19	Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of discounts and rebates.
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4.19	Revenue recognition (Cont’d)
 
	 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction 

would flow to the Group, and the amount of revenue and the cost incurred or to be incurred in respect of the 
transaction can be reliably measured and specific recognition criteria have been met for each of the Group’s 
activities as follows:	

(a) 	 Sale of goods

	 Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the 
goods have been transferred to the customer and where the Group does not have continuing managerial 
involvement over the goods, which coincides with the delivery of goods and acceptance by customers.

(b)	 Property development

	 Revenue from property development is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable and is 
recognised, in the profit or loss when significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the 
buyer based on the following key considerations:

(i)	 the risks and rewards of the properties under development passes to the buyer on delivery in its 
entirety at a single time on vacant possession and not continuously as construction progresses;

(ii)	 the Group maintain control over the properties under development during the construction period, 
i.e. the Group retain the obligation to construct the property in accordance with terms of the Sale and 
Purchase Agreement and correspondingly, construction risks is retained with the Group;

(iii)	 the Sale and Purchase Agreement does not give the right to the buyer to take over the work in 
progress during construction;

(iv)	 the buyers have limited ability to influence the design of the property; and

(v)	 title passes to buyers on vacant possession.

(c) 	 Management services

	 Management services is recognised on an accrual basis.

(d) 	 Other income

(i)	 Interest income	

	 Interest income is recognised as it accrues, using the effective interest method.

(ii) 	 Rental income

	 Rental income is accounted for on a straight line basis over the lease term of an ongoing lease. 

4.20	Operating segments

Operating segments are defined as components of the Group that:

(a) 	 Engages in business activities from which it could earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and 
expenses relating to transactions with other components of the Group);

(b) 	 Whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker of the Group (i.e. the 
Managing Director) in making decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assessing its 
performance; and

(c) 	 For which discrete financial information is available.

An operating segment may engage in business activities for which it has yet to earn revenues.
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4.20	Operating segments (Cont’d)

	 The Group reports separately information about each operating segment that meets any of the following 
quantitative thresholds:

(a) 	 Its reported revenue, including both sales to external customers and intersegment sales or transfers, is ten 
percent (10%) or more of the combined revenue, internal and external, of all operating segments.

(b) 	 The absolute amount of its reported profit or loss is ten percent (10%) or more of the greater, in absolute 
amount of:

(i) 	 the combined reported profit of all operating segments that did not report a loss; and 

(ii) 	 the combined reported loss of all operating segments that reported a loss. 

(c) 	 Its assets are ten percent (10%) or more of the combined assets of all operating segments.

	 Operating segments that do not meet any of the quantitative thresholds may be considered reportable, and 
separately disclosed, if the management believes that information about the segment would be useful to users of 
the financial statements.	

	 Total external revenue reported by operating segments shall constitute at least seventy-five percent (75%) of 
the revenue of the Group. Operating segments identified as reportable segments in the current financial year 
in accordance with the quantitative thresholds would result in a restatement of prior period segment data for 
comparative purposes.

4.21	Earnings per share

(a) 	 Basic

	 Basic earnings per ordinary share for the financial year is calculated by dividing the profit for the financial year 
attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
during the financial year.

(b) 	 Diluted

	 Diluted earnings per ordinary share for the financial year is calculated by dividing the profit for the financial 
year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the financial year adjusted for the effects of dilutive potential ordinary shares.

4.22	 Fair value measurements

	 The fair value of an asset or a liability, except for lease transactions is determined as the price that would be 
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at 
the measurement date. The fair value measurement method assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or 
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market or in the absence of a principal market, in the most 
advantageous market.

	 The Group measures the fair value of an asset or a liability by taking into account the characteristics of the asset 
or liability if market participants would take these characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability. 
The Group has considered the following characteristics when determining fair value: 

(a)	 The condition and location of the asset; and

(b)	 Restrictions, if any, on the sale or use of the asset.

	 The fair value measurement for a non-financial asset takes into account the ability of the market participant 
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market 
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

4.22	 Fair value measurements (Cont’d)

	 The fair value of a financial or non-financial liability or an entity’s own equity instrument assumes that:

(a)	 A liability would remain outstanding and the market participant transferee would be required to fulfil 
the obligation. The liability would not be settled with the counterparty or otherwise extinguished on the 
measurement date; and

(b)	 An entity’s own equity instrument would remain outstanding and the market participant transferee would 
take on the rights and responsibilities associated with the instrument. The instrument would not be cancelled 
or otherwise extinguished on the measurement date.

5.	 ADOPTION OF NEW MFRSs AND AMENDMENT TO MFRSs

5.1	 New MFRSs adopted during the financial year

	 The Group and Company adopted the following Standards of the MFRS Framework that were issued by the 
Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”) during the financial year:

Title Effective Date

MFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016
Amendments to MFRS 10, MFRS 12 and MFRS 128 Investment Entities: 

Applying the Consolidation Exception 1 January 2016
Amendments to MFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint 

Operations 1 January 2016
Amendments to MFRS 101 Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2016
Amendments to MFRS 116 and MFRS 138 Clarification of Acceptable 

Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation 1 January 2016
Amendments to MFRS 116 and MFRS 141 Agriculture: Bearer Plants 1 January 2016
Amendments to MFRS 127 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2016
Amendments to MFRSs Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle 1 January 2016

	 Adoption of the above Standards did not have any material effect on the financial performance or position of the 
Group and of the Company. 

5.2	 New MFRSs that have been issued, but only effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2017

	 The following are Standards of the MFRS Framework that have been issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards 
Board (“MASB”) but have not been early adopted by the Group and the Company.

Title Effective Date

Amendments to MFRS 12 Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 
2014 – 2016 Cycle 1 January 2017

Amendments to MFRS 107 Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2017
Amendments to MFRS 112 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for 

Unrealised Losses 1 January 2017
Amendments to MFRS 1 Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2014 

- 2016 Cycle 1 January 2018
MFRS 9 Financial Instruments (IFRS as issued by IASB in July 2014) 1 January 2018
MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018
Clarification to MFRS 15 1 January 2018
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5.	 ADOPTION OF NEW MFRSs AND AMENDMENT TO MFRSs (Cont’d)

5.2	 New MFRSs that have been issued, but only effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2017 (Cont’d)

	 The following are Standards of the MFRS Framework that have been issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards 
Board (“MASB”) but have not been early adopted by the Group and the Company (Cont’d).

Title Effective Date

Amendments to MFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions 1 January 2018

Amendments to MFRS 128 Annual Improvements to MFRS Standard 
2014 - 2016 Cycle 1 January 2018

Amendments to MFRS 140 Transfer of Investment Property 1 January 2018
IC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance 

Consideration 1 January 2018
Amendments to MFRS 4 Applying MFRS 9 Financial Instruments with 

MFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
See MFRS 4 

Paragraphs 46 and 48
MFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
Amendments to MFRS 10 and MFRS 128 Sale or Contribution of Assets 

between an Investor and its Associates or Joint Venture Deferred

	 The Group and the Company are in the process of assessing the impact of implementing these Standards and 
Amendments, since the effects would only be observable for future financial years.

6.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

	 Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated by the management of the Group and are based on historical 
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances.	

	 The management makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, 
by definition, rarely equal the related actual results. To enhance the information content of the estimates, certain 
key variables that are anticipated to have material impact to the Group’s results and financial position are tested for 
sensitivity to changes in the underlying parameters. The estimates and assumptions that may have a significant risk of 
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are outlined 
below.

	 Impairment of receivables

	 Management recognised allowances for impairment losses on trade receivables based on specific known facts or 
circumstances on customers’ abilities to pay.	

	 The determination of whether the trade receivables are recoverable involves significant management judgement 
and inherent subjectivity given the uncertainty regarding the ability of the trade receivables to settle their debts. 
Management focused on the risk that the trade receivables may be overstated and hence, further impairment losses 
may be required.
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7.	 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

At 31.3.2017

Company
Cost
RM

Accumulated 
depreciation

RM

Carrying 
amount

RM

Office equipment, furniture and fittings 10,450 (10,450) 0

At 31.3.2016

Company
Cost
RM

Accumulated 
depreciation

RM

Carrying 
amount

RM

Office equipment, furniture and fittings 10,450 (10,450) 0

(a)	 The freehold buildings, long term leasehold land and buildings of subsidiaries were revalued on 31 March 2016 by 
the Directors based on valuation exercises carried out in March 2016 by independent professional valuers using 
the open market value basis. 

	 Had the revalued assets been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation, the carrying amounts would have 
been:

Group
2017
RM

2016
RM

Freehold buildings  754,875 773,175
Long term leasehold buildings 8,049,554 8,328,125
Long term leasehold land 3,911,885  4,047,599

 12,716,314 13,148,899

(b)	 During the financial year, the Group made the following cash payments to purchase property, plant and equipment:

Group
2017
RM

2016
RM

Purchase of property, plant and equipment	 1,218,810 990,951 
Financed by hire purchase arrangements  (128,300)  (293,000)
Cash payments on purchase of property, plant 

and equipment 1,090,510  697,951

c)	 As at 31 March 2017, the carrying amounts of the property, plant and equipment of the Group under hire purchase 
are as follows:

Group
2017
RM

2016
RM

Motor vehicles  456,653  864,279
Office equipment	 0 189,968

456,653 1,054,247

	 Details of the terms and conditions of the hire purchase arrangements are disclosed in Note 21 to the financial 
statements.	
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7.	 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d) 

(d)	 As at 31 March 2017, the unexpired lease periods of the long term leasehold land is 30 years (2016: 31 years). The 
long term leasehold land is charged as security for the banking facilities as disclosed in Notes 19, 20 and 23 to the 
financial statements.

(e)	 As at 31 March 2017, certain property, plant and equipment of the Group with carrying amounts of RM18,551,708 
(2016: RM19,090,000) are charged to local banks as securities for banking facilities as disclosed in Notes19, 20 
and 23 to the financial statements.

(f)	 As at 31 March 2017, certain motor vehicles of the Group with carrying amount of RM12,512 (2016: RM62,552) 
are registered in the names of certain Directors of the Group and third parties who hold them in trust for the 
subsidiaries.

(g)	 The fair value of freehold buildings, long term leasehold land and buildings (at valuation) of the Group are 
categorised as follows:

Level 1
RM

Level 2
RM

Level 3
RM

Total
RM

Group
2017
Freehold buildings 0  1,150,000 0 1,150,000
Long term leasehold buildings 0 10,000,000 0 10,000,000
Long term leasehold land 0 8,000,000 0 8,000,000

0  19,150,000 0 19,150,000

Group
2016
Freehold buildings 0 1,090,000 0 1,090,000
Long term leasehold buildings 0 10,000,000 0 10,000,000
Long term leasehold land 0 8,000,000 0 8,000,000

0 19,090,000 0 19,090,000

(i)	 There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements during the financial 
years ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016.

(ii)	 Level 2 fair value of freehold buildings, long term leasehold land and buildings (at valuation) were determined 
by external and independent property valuers, having appropriate recognised professional qualifications 
and recent experience in the location and category of property being valued.

8.	 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Group

Balance 
as at 

1.4.2016 
RM

Amortisation 
charges for 
the financial 

year 
RM

Balance 
as at

31.3.2017
RM

Carrying amount
Building 184,167 (6,500) 177,667
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8.	 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Cont’d)

At 31.3.2017

Group
Cost
RM

Accumulated 
amortisation 

and 
impairment

RM

Carrying 
amount

RM

Building 325,000 (147,333) 177,667

 

Group

Balance 
as at 

1.4.2015 
RM

Amortisation 
charges for 
the financial 

year 
RM

Balance 
as at

31.3.2016
RM

Carrying amount
Building 190,667  (6,500)  184,167

At 31.3.2016

Group
Cost
RM

Accumulated 
amortisation 

and 
impairment

RM

Carrying 
amount

RM

Building 325,000 (140,833) 184,167

(a)	 The fair value of the investment property for disclosure purposes, which is at Level 3 fair value, is based on 
Directors’ estimation by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties and recent 
experience in the location and category of the properties being valued.

	 The fair value of investment property at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Group
2017
RM

2016
RM

Building 350,000 320,000

(b)	 There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements during the financial years 
ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016.

(c)	 Direct operating expenses arising from investment property not generating rental income during the year are as 
follows:

Group
2017
RM

2016
RM

Maintenance fee 3,875  3,875
Quit rent and assessment 2,279 1,620

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
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9.	 GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION
	

Group
2017
RM

2016
RM

Cost
At 31 March 551,552 551,552

	 For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash generating units (‘CGU’) identified 
according to the operating segments as follows:

Group
2017
RM

2016
RM

Property development 551,552 551,552

	 Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis by comparing the carrying amount with the recoverable amount 
of the CGUs based on value-in-use. Value-in-use is determined by discounting the future cash flows to be generated 
from the continuing use of the CGUs based on the following assumptions:

(i)	 Cash flows are projected based on the management’s most recent five (5) years business plan.

(ii)	 Discount rates used for cash flows discounting purpose is the Group’s weighted average cost of capital. The 
average discount rate applied for cash flow projection is 6.10% (2016: 7.10%).

(iii)	 Estimated number of units sold based on current market conditions and past performances.

10.	 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company
2017
RM

2016
RM

Unquoted shares 44,941,162 44,941,162
At cost (5,038,124)  (16,944,854)
Less: Impairment losses 39,903,038 27,996,308

	 Details of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of Company
Country of 
incorporation

Interest in equity held by

Principal activities

Company Subsidiaries
2017

%
2016

%
2017

%
2016

%

Emico Penang Sdn. 
Bhd.

Malaysia	 100 100 0 0 Manufacturing of original equipment 
manufacturer products, awards, 
trophy components, medallions, 
souvenir, gift items, furniture products 
and general trading	

Emico Development 
Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia 100 100 0 0 Investment holding and property 
development
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10.	 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)
										        

Name of Company
Country of 
incorporation

Interest in equity held by

Principal activities

Company Subsidiaries
2017

%
2016

%
2017

%
2016

%

NEB Development 
Berhad	

Malaysia 60 60 0 0 Dormant

Mercu Tanah Langkawi 
Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia 71 71 0 0 Investment holding

Emico Marketing Sdn. 
Bhd.

Malaysia 100 100 0 0 Dormant	

Emico Tools Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 0 0 Dormant	

Emico Capital Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 0 0 Dormant	

Emico Creative Design 
Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia 100 100 0 0 Dormant	

Emico Newk Sdn. Bhd. * Malaysia 100 100 0 0 Dormant	

Subsidiaries of Emico 
Penang Sdn. Bhd.

Emico Asia Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 0 0 100 100 Trading of houseware and furniture

Standard Trend Apparel 
Industries Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia 0 0 53.3 53.3 Dormant

Subsidiaries of Emico 
Marketing Sdn. Bhd.

Emico Metalizing Sdn. 
Bhd.

Malaysia 0 0 100 100 Dormant

Emico Melaka Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 0 0 51 51 Dormant

Subsidiaries of NEB 
Development Berhad

NEB Pacific Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 0 0 100 100 Dormant

Unic Builders Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 0 0 100 100 Dormant

Subsidiary of Mercu 
Tanah Langkawi Sdn. 
Bhd.

Operasi Tembaga Sdn. 
Bhd.

Malaysia 0 0 70 70 Investment holding
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10.	 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Name of Company
Country of 
incorporation

Interest in equity held by

Principal activities

Company Subsidiaries
2017

%
2016

%
2017

%
2016

%

Subsidiary of Operasi 
Tembaga Sdn. Bhd.

PKB-Operasi Tembaga 
Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia 0 0 56 56 Property development

Subsidiary of Emico Asia 
Sdn. Bhd.

Emico Co. Ltd. * People’s 
Republic of 
China

0 0 100 100 Marketing of awards, trophy 
components, souvenir items and 
general trading

	 *	 The financial statements of these subsidiaries are not audited by BDO, Malaysia.				 

(a)	 Impairment loss on investment in subsidiaries amounting to RM173,067 (2016: RM281,545) in respect of Emico 
Marketing Sdn. Bhd. and Emico Capital Sdn. Bhd. has been recognised during the financial year due to declining 
business operations. The recoverable amount was determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash 
flows projection based on financial budget covering a one (1) year period. The discount rate applied to the cash 
flows projection was 6.1% (2016: 7.1%) based on the weighted average cost of capital of the Company.

(b)	 Reversal of impairment loss on investment in a subsidiary amounting to RM12,079,797 in respect of Emico Penang 
Sdn. Bhd. has been recognised during the financial year due to improvement in sales activities. The recoverable 
amount was determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial 
budget approved by the management covering a five (5)-year period. The discount rate applied to the cash flow 
projections was 6.1% based on the weighted average cost of capital of the Company. The terminal value of CGUs 
is calculated by using perpetuity approach, applying a constant growth rate beyond 5 years. 

(c)	 The subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling interests (‘NCI’) are as follows:	 	
	

NEB
 Development

Berhad

Other individual 
immaterial 
subsidiaries Total

2017

NCI percentage of ownership interest and 
voting interest 40%

Carrying amount of NCI (RM)  7,551,804  488,585  8,040,389

Loss allocated to NCI (RM)	 (20,356)  (233,461) (253,817)

2016

NCI percentage of ownership interest and 
voting interest 40%

Carrying amount of NCI (RM)  7,572,160 722,046  8,294,206

(Loss)/Profit allocated to NCI (RM)  (170,995) 551,855 380,860

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

 31 MARCH 2017
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10.	 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

(c)	 The subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling interests (‘NCI’) are as follows: (Cont’d)	

The NCI of all other subsidiaries that are not wholly owned by the Group are deemed to be immaterial.

(d)	 The summarised financial information before intra-group elimination of the subsidiary that has material NCI as at 
the end of each reporting period is as follows:

NEB Development Berhad 
2017
RM

2016
RM

Assets and liabilities

Non-current assets  177,667 184,167
Current assets 18,824,297 18,869,442
Current liabilities  (122,455)  (123,209)
Net assets  18,879,509 18,930,400

Results

Revenue	 0 552,600
Loss for the financial year (50,891)  (427,488)
Total comprehensive loss  (50,891) (427,488)

Cash flows used in operating activities  (27,831) (160,686)
Cash flows from investing activities	 42,796 22,746
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  14,965 (137,940)

11.	 OTHER INVESTMENTS
	

Group
2017
RM

2016
RM

Unquoted shares in Malaysia, at cost
Balance as at 31 March  1,024,800  1,024,800

Less: Impairment losses
Balance as at 31 March  (1,024,800)  (1,024,800)

Carrying amount 0 0

Fair value 0 0

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
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12.	 DEFERRED TAX

(a)	 The deferred tax assets and liabilities are made up of the following:

Group
2017
RM

2016
RM

Balance as at 1 April 2016/2015  (4,605,005)  (4,104,844)
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 31) (11,413)  (183,593)
Recognised in other comprehensive income	 0 (316,568)
Balance as at 31 March  (4,616,418)  (4,605,005)

Presented after appropriate offsetting:

Deferred tax assets 88,900 327,000
Deferred tax liabilities (4,705,318)  (4,932,005)

 (4,616,418)  (4,605,005)

(b)	 The components and movements of deferred tax liabilities and assets during the financial year prior to offsetting 
are as follows:

	 Deferred tax liabilities of the Group

Property, plant, 
and equipment

RM

Revaluation 
surplus of 
revalued 

properties
RM

Total
RM

Balance as at 1 April 2016  1,105,601 3,826,404  4,932,005
Recognised in profit or loss  (109,500)  (117,187) (226,687)
Recognised in other comprehensive 

income 0 0 0
Balance as at 31 March 2017 996,101  3,709,217 4,705,318

Balance as at 1 April 2015 933,101 3,617,743  4,550,844
Recognised in profit or loss  172,500  (107,907)  64,593
Recognised in other comprehensive 

income 0 316,568  316,568
Balance as at 31 March 2016 1,105,601 3,826,404  4,932,005

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

 31 MARCH 2017
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12.	 DEFERRED TAX (Cont’d)

(b)	 The components and movements of deferred tax liabilities and assets during the financial year prior to offsetting 
are as follows: (Cont’d)

	 Deferred tax assets of the Group

Unused tax 
losses and 

unabsorbed 
capital 

allowances
RM

Balance as at 1 April 2016 327,000
Recognised in profit or loss  (238,100)
Balance as at 31 March 2017  88,900

Balance as at 1 April 2015	 446,000
Recognised in profit or loss (119,000)
Balance as at 31 March 2016  327,000

 
(c)	 The amounts of temporary differences for which no deferred tax assets have been recognised in the statements 

of financial position are as follows:

Group Company
2017
RM

2016
RM

2017
RM

2016
RM

Property, plant and equipment  728,000 649,400 0 0
Unused tax losses 12,996,200 12,270,800 5,388,810  5,205,400

13,724,200 12,920,200 5,388,810  5,205,400

	 Deferred tax assets of certain subsidiaries have not been recognised in respect of these items as it is not probable 
that taxable profits of the subsidiaries would be available against which the deductible temporary differences can 
be utilised.

	 The deductible temporary differences do not expire under the current tax legislation.

13.	 INVENTORIES

Group
2017
RM

2016
RM

At cost
Raw materials  1,165,065  1,450,321
Work-in-progress 1,603,667  1,770,756
Finished goods 7,091,533 7,304,126
Developed properties  1,575,802  636,936
Properties under development 15,951,274 18,837,815
Land held for property development 7,322,864  8,315,499

34,710,205 38,315,453

At net realisable value
Developed properties 1,930,000  1,930,000

36,640,205  40,245,453

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
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13.	 INVENTORIES (Cont’d)

Group
2017
RM

2016
RM

Included in properties under development are:

- Freehold land 571,692 504,933
- Leasehold land 1,436,233  1,436,233
- Development expenditure 15,604,349 18,557,649

17,612,274  20,498,815
- Foreseeable loss  (1,661,000)  (1,661,000)

15,951,274 18,837,815

Included in land held for property development are:
- Freehold land  2,743,885  3,028,285
- Development expenditure 4,578,979 5,287,214

7,322,864 8,315,499

(a) 	 During the financial year, inventories of the Group recognised as cost of sales amounted to RM41,496,656 (2016: 
RM36,545,319).

14.	 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Company
2017
RM

2016
RM

2017
RM

2016
RM

Trade receivables

Third parties 10,336,370 12,645,481 0 0
Amounts owing by related parties  2,472,968 2,147,319 0 0

12,809,338  14,792,800 0 0

Less: Impairment loss
- Third parties (367,721) (362,017) 0 0

 12,441,617  14,430,783 0 0

Other receivables

Other receivables 1,325,011  1,685,876 0 0
Amounts owing by subsidiaries 0 0  7,186,652  8,167,294

1,325,011 1,685,876 7,186,652  8,167,294

Less: Impairment loss
- Other receivables (167,577) (150,098) 0 0

 1,157,434  1,535,778 7,186,652  8,167,294

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
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14.	 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

Group Company
2017
RM

2016
RM

2017
RM

2016
RM

Loans and receivables 13,599,051  15,966,561  7,186,652 8,167,294 

Deposits and prepayments

Deposits 728,648 705,943 1,000  1,000
Prepayments 1,192,893 1,258,537 15,000  15,900

1,921,541 1,964,480  16,000  16,900
15,520,592 17,931,041 7,202,652 8,184,194

(a)	 The normal trade credit terms granted by the Group on sale of goods and properties and services rendered 
ranges from 21 to 120 days (2016: 21 to 120 days). They are recognised at their original invoice amounts which 
represent their fair values on initial recognition.

(b)	 Amounts owing by related parties are unsecured, interest-free and are payable upon demand in cash and cash 
equivalents. The related parties are companies in which certain Directors and shareholders are connected to 
certain Directors of the Company.

(c)	 Amounts owing by subsidiaries arose mainly from unsecured advances which are interest-free and payable upon 
demand in cash and cash equivalents.

(d)	 Included in trade receivables comprise of stakeholders’ retention sum amounting to RM620,338 (2016: RM309,011), 
representing monies paid by purchasers which are held by solicitors and will be released to the Company upon 
expiry of defective period.

(e)	 The currency exposure profile of loans and receivables are as follows:	

Group Company
2017
RM

2016
RM

2017
RM

2016
RM

Ringgit Malaysia 8,111,251 9,998,236  7,186,652 8,167,294
United States Dollar 5,041,755 5,448,094 0 0
Chinese Renminbi  166,710 493,975 0 0
Japanese Yen 19,783 26,256 0 0
Hong Kong Dollar 259,552 0 0 0

 13,599,051 15,966,561  7,186,652 8,167,294
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14.	 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

(f)	 The ageing analysis of trade receivables of the Group is as follows:	

Group
2017
RM

2016
RM

Neither past due nor impaired 8,021,835  8,837,817
Past due, not impaired
1 to 30 days  1,915,686 2,846,054
31 to 60 days 818,710 1,629,972
61 to 90 days 217,131 419,388
More than 90 days 1,468,255 697,552

4,419,782 5,592,966
Past due and impaired 367,721  362,017

12,809,338 14,792,800

	 Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired

	 Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy debtors with good payment records 
with the Group.

	 None of the Group’s trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have been renegotiated during the 
financial year.

	 Receivables that are past due but not impaired

	 The Group has trade receivables amounting to RM4,419,782 (2016: RM5,592,966) that are past due at the 
reporting date but not impaired. The Directors and management are confident that the outstanding amounts are 
recoverable as these accounts are still active and have not defaulted on payments based on historical trends.

	
	 Receivables that are past due and impaired

	 Receivables of the Group that are past due and impaired at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Individually impaired 
Group

2017
RM

2016
RM

Trade receivables

Trade receivables, gross  367,721 362,017
Less: Impairment loss (367,721)  (362,017)

0 0

Other receivables	

Other receivables, gross 167,577 150,098
Less: Impairment loss (167,577)  (150,098)

0 0

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
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14.	 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

(g)	 The reconciliation of movements in impairment losses are as follows:

Group
2017
RM

2016
RM

Trade receivables	
Balance as at 1 April 2016/2015 362,017 340,094
Charge for the financial year  5,704  26,145
Reversal of impairment loss (Note 28) 0 (4,222)
Balance as at 31 March  367,721  362,017

Group Company
2017
RM

2016
RM

2017
RM

2016
RM

Other receivables
Balance as at April 2016/2015 150,098 150,098 0  7,118,228
Charge for the financial year 17,479 0 0 0
Written off 0 0 0 (5,118,228)
Reversal of impairment loss 
(Note 28) 0 0 0  (2,000,000)
Balance as at 31 March 167,577 150,098 0 0

	 Trade and other receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the end of the reporting period 
relate to those debtors that exhibit significant financial difficulties and have defaulted on payments. These 
receivables are not secured by any collateral or credit enhancements.

(h)	 Information on financial risks of trade and other receivables is disclosed in Note 37 to the financial statements.

15.	 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Group Company
2017
RM

2016
RM

2017
RM

2016
RM

Cash and bank balances  3,771,185 7,875,916 140,612 93,155
Deposits with licensed banks 586,286 721,560 0 0

 4,357,471  8,597,476 140,612  93,155

(a)	 Included in the Group’s cash and bank balances is an amount of RM1,488,076 (2016: RM3,732,672)  held under 
the Housing Development Account pursuant to Section 7A of the Housing Development (Control and Licensing) 
Act 1966, as amended by the Housing Developers (Housing Development Account) (Amendment) Regulations 
2015.

(b)	 Information on financial risks of cash and bank balances is disclosed in Note 37 to the financial statements.

(c)	 Included in the deposits with licensed banks is an amount of RM86,286 (2016: RM121,560) pledged as security for 
bank guarantees granted to subsidiaries. 
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 31 MARCH 2017



90 EMICO HOLDINGS BERHAD (230326-D)

15.	 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Cont’d)

(d)	 The currency exposure profile of cash and bank balances are as follows:

Group Company
2017
RM

2016
RM

2017
RM

2016
RM

Ringgit Malaysia 3,459,363  5,434,618 140,612  93,155
United States Dollar 763,747  2,868,245 0 0
Chinese Renminbi 128,773 233,040 0 0
Thai Baht 837 837 0 0
Euro 4,435 60,420 0 0
Sterling Pound 316 316 0 0

 4,357,471 8,597,476  140,612 93,155

(e)	 For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following as at the end 
of the reporting period:

Group Company
2017
RM

2016
RM

2017
RM

2016
RM

Cash and bank balances 3,771,185  7,875,916  140,612 93,155
Deposits with licensed banks 586,286 721,560 0 0
Bank overdrafts included in 

borrowings (Note 18) (1,266,156) (1,976,736) 0 0
3,091,315 6,620,740 140,612 93,155

Less: Deposits pledged to 
licensed banks (86,286) (121,560) 0 0

3,005,029  6,499,180 140,612 93,155

16.	 SHARE CAPITAL

Group and Company
2017 2016

Number of 
ordinary shares

Amount
RM

Number of 
ordinary shares

Amount
RM

Issued and fully paid up ordinary 
shares

Balance as at 1 April 2016/2015  95,926,521  95,926,521  95,926,521  95,926,521
Capital reduction 0  (86,333,869) 0 0
Transfer from share premium account 

pursuant to the new Companies 
Act, 2016 0 7,736,782 0 0

Balance as at 31 March 95,926,521 17,329,434 95,926,521 95,926,521

(a)	 On 17 March 2017, the Company completed a capital reduction exercise pursuant to Section 116(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia to reduce the issued and paid up ordinary shares in the capital of the Company 
via the cancellation of the issued and paid up share capital of RM86,333,869.
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16.	 SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’d)

(b)	 The owners of the parent are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Company and are entitled 
to one (1) vote per ordinary share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank pari passu with regard to 
the residual assets of the Company.

(c)	 With the introduction of the new Companies Act, 2016 (the “Act”) effective 31 January 2017, the concept of 
authorised share capital and par value of share capital has been abolished. Consequently, balances within the 
share premium account have been transferred to the share capital account pursuant to the transitional provisions 
set out in Section 618(2) of the new Act. Notwithstanding this provision, the Company has elected to utilise its 
share premium account of RM7,736,782 for purposes stipulated in Section 618(3) of the new Act for a transitional 
period of 24 months from 31 January 2017. 

17.	 RESERVES

Group Company
2017
RM

2016
RM

2017
RM

2016
RM

Non-distributable:
Share premium 0 7,736,782 0 7,736,782
Revaluation reserve 11,810,965 11,810,965 0 0
Exchange translation reserve 859 10,427 0 0

 11,811,824  19,558,174 0 7,736,782

(a)	 Share premium

	 Share premium balances have been transferred to share capital pursuant to the transitional provisions in Section 
618(2) of the new Companies Act, 2016.

(b)	 Revaluation reserve

	 Revaluation reserve represents the surplus arising on the revaluation of the Group’s freehold buildings, long term 
leasehold land and buildings.

(c)	 Exchange translation reserve 

	 The exchange translation reserve is used to record foreign currency exchange differences arising from the 
translation of the financial statements of foreign operations whose functional currencies are different from that of 
the presentation currency of the Group. It is also used to record the exchange differences arising from monetary 
items which form part of the net investment of the Group in foreign operations, where the monetary item is 
denominated in either the functional currency of the reporting entity or the foreign operation.

18.	 BORROWINGS

Group
2017
RM

2016
RM

Current liabilities
Secured:
Bank overdrafts (Note 19)  1,266,156  1,976,736
Short term bank loans (Note 20) 3,831,000 3,987,000
Hire purchase payables (Note 21) 236,889 241,900
Receivables financing (Note 22) 0 671,093
Term loans (Note 23)  1,112,677  1,049,928

6,446,722 7,926,657
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18.	 BORROWINGS (Cont’d)

Group
2017
RM

2016
RM

Non-current liabilities
Secured:
Hire purchase payables (Note 21) 898,183 1,013,609
Term loans (Note 23) 1,523,426 2,639,076

 2,421,609  3,652,685

Total borrowings
Bank overdrafts (Note 19)  1,266,156 1,976,736
Short term bank loans (Note 20)  3,831,000  3,987,000
Hire purchase payables (Note 21) 1,135,072 1,255,509
Receivables financing (Note 22) 0 671,093
Term loans (Note 23)  2,636,103 3,689,004

8,868,331 11,579,342

(a)	 All borrowings are denominated in RM.

(b)	 Information on financial risks of borrowings is disclosed in Note 37 to the financial statements.

19.	 BANK OVERDRAFTS 

The bank overdrafts of the Group are secured over by:

(i)	 a legal charge over long term leasehold land and buildings as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statememtns: 
and 

(ii)	 a corporate guarantee by the Company.

20.	 SHORT TERM BANK LOANS

Group
2017
RM

2016
RM

Short term bank loans
- banker’s acceptance  3,831,000 3,987,000

	 Short term bank loans of the Group are secured by:

(i)	 a legal charge over long term leasehold land and buildings as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements; and

(ii)	 a corporate guarantee by the Company.
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21.	 HIRE PURCHASE PAYABLES

Group
2017
RM

2016
RM

Minimum hire purchase payments:
- not later than one (1) year 289,392 299,641
- later than one (1) year but not later than five (5) years 936,286 1,081,291
- later than five (5) years  75,590 66,760
Total minimum hire purchase payments 1,301,268 1,447,692
Less: Future interest charges  (166,196)  (192,183)
Present value of hire purchase payments 1,135,072 1,255,509

Repayable as follows:

Current liabilities:	
- not later than one (1) year 236,889 241,900

Non-current liabilities:
- later than one (1) year and not later than five (5) years 717,279 949,035
- later than five (5) years 180,904 64,574

1,135,072 1,255,509

22.	 RECEIVABLES FINANCING [2016 only]

The receivables financing of the Group were secured by:

(i)	 existing receivables finance agreement; and

(ii)	 a corporate guarantee by the Company.

23.	 TERM LOANS 

The term loan of the Group are secured by:

(i)	 a legal charge over freehold buildings, long term leasehold land and buildings as disclosed in Note 7 to the 
financial statements; and

(ii)	 a corporate guarantee by the Company.
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24.	 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company
2017
RM

2016
RM

2017
RM

2016
RM

Trade payables
Third parties  5,777,306 6,467,450 0 0
Amounts owing to related parties 1,605,666 4,769,521 0 0

 7,382,972  11,236,971 0 0

Other payables
Amounts owing to:
- subsidiaries 0 0 12,706,600 12,805,305
- Directors  835,364 903,489 700,000 700,000
- related parties 318,272 499,979 0 0
Other payables 2,215,634  2,543,482 31,021 13
Deposit received 800,000 800,000 0 0
Accruals 3,755,748 3,058,425 314,510 254,510

7,925,018 7,805,375 13,752,131 13,759,828 

15,307,990 19,042,346 13,752,131 13,759,828

(a)	 Trade payables comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases. The amount is non-interest bearing and 
normal trade credit terms granted to the Group ranges from 30 to 90 days (2016: 30 to 150 days).

(b)	 Amounts owing to subsidiaries and related parties are non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and are 
payable upon demand in cash and cash equivalents.

	 The related parties are companies in which certain Directors of the Group and their family members have significant 
financial and controlling interests.

(c)	 The amount owing to Directors is in respect of advances received, which is unsecured, interest-free and is payable 
upon demand in cash and cash equivalents.

(d)	 Included in accruals of the Group is retention sum on contracts amounting to RM958,003 (2016: RM959,839).

(e)	 Information on financial risks of trade and other payables are disclosed in Note 37 to the financial statements.

(f)	 The currency exposure profile of payables are as follows:

Group Company
2017
RM

2016
RM

2017
RM

2016
RM

Ringgit Malaysia 13,474,305 15,879,689 13,752,131 13,759,828
Chinese Renminbi 1,635,801 2,059,587 0 0
United States Dollar 94,574 1,073,956 0 0
Euro 103,310 29,114 0 0

 15,307,990 19,042,346 13,752,131 13,759,828
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25.	 DEFERRED REVENUE

	 Movements of the deferred revenue are as follows:

Group
2017
RM

2016
RM

Balance as at 1 April 2016/2015  5,827,904 6,371,999
Additions during the financial year 6,928,453 15,095,385
Recognised in profit or loss  (11,917,060)  (15,639,480)
Balance as at 31 March 839,297  5,827,904

	 Deferred revenue relates to progress billing net of discounts for which the properties have yet to be delivered.

26.	 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Company
2017
RM

2016
RM

Unsecured
Corporate guarantees extended to local banks for credit 

facilities granted to subsidiaries 7,733,259 10,323,829

	 The Directors are of the view that the chances of the financial institutes to call upon the corporate guarantees are 
remote. Accordingly, the fair values of the above corporate guarantees given to the subsidiaries for banking facilities 
are negligible.   	

27.	 REVENUE

Group Company
2017
RM

2016
RM

2017
RM

2016
RM

Sale of goods 58,366,533 61,737,757 0 0
Property development 11,917,060 18,280,350 0 0
Management services rendered 0 0 180,000 240,000

70,283,593  80,018,107 180,000 240,000
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28.	 OTHER INCOME

Group Company
2017
RM

2016
RM

2017
RM

2016
RM

Deposits forfeited 0 200,121 0 0
Gain on disposal of property, plant 

and equipment 0 54,017 0 0
Interest income from financial 

institutions 88,706 151,209 0 175
Realised gain on foreign exchange 82,193  1,224,927 0 0
Rental received from:
- land 64,000 0 0 0
- machinery 24,000 24,000 0 0
- premises 180,000 180,000 0 0
Reversal of impairment losses on: 
- investment in a subsidiary 0 0 12,079,797 0
- trade and other receivables (Note 

14(g)) 0 4,222 0  2,000,000
Sundry income 68,155 71,073 0 0
Unrealised gain on foreign exchange  109,734 0 0 0

616,788  1,909,569 12,079,797 2,000,175

29.	 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Group Company
2017
RM

2016
RM

2017
RM

2016
RM

Wages, salaries, overtime and 
bonuses 9,074,592 8,643,265 668,138  643,124

Contributions to defined 
contribution plan 774,195 713,242  66,838 63,620

Social security contributions 76,507  64,532  1,021 797
Other benefits 552,867  501,928 0 0

10,478,161 9,922,967 735,997  707,541

30.	 FINANCE COSTS

Group Company
2017
RM

2016
RM

2017
RM

2016
RM

Interest expense on:
- bank overdrafts 113,043 78,060 0 0
- short term bank loans 174,874 148,167 0 0
- hire purchase 63,187  61,962 0 0
- term loans 170,506 191,417 0 0
- others  2,873 33,283 5 8

524,483 512,889 5 8
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31.	 TAX EXPENSE

Group
2017
RM

2016
RM

Current tax expense based on profit for the financial year 1,196,102 1,955,365
Under/(Over)provision of tax expense in prior year 127,672  (314,444)

1,323,774 1,640,921

Deferred tax (Note 12):
- relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 130,570 25,700
- crystallisation of deferred tax liability on revaluation surplus (117,187) (107,907)
- (over)/underprovision in prior year (1,970)  265,800

11,413 183,593

Real Property Gain Tax 44,737 0

 1,379,924 1,824,514

	 Malaysian income tax is calculated at the statutory tax rate of 24% (2016: 24%) of the estimated taxable profit for the 
fiscal year.

	 The numerical reconciliation between the tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the applicable 
tax rates of the Group and of the Company are as follows:

Group Company
2017
RM

2016
RM

2017
RM

2016
RM

Profit before tax 2,730,032 5,870,537 10,980,342 1,101,717
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 24% 

(2016: 24%) 655,208 1,408,929  2,635,282 264,400
Tax effects of: 
- expenses not deductible for tax 

purpose  418,451 418,501 117,200  27,900
- income not subject to tax  (57,134)  (93,472)  (2,796,500) (480,000)
Utilisation of deferred tax assets 

previously not recognised 0  (167,600) 0 0
Deferred tax assets not recognised 

during the financial year  192,960 306,800 44,018 187,700
Under/(Over)provision in prior year
- income tax 127,672 (314,444) 0 0
- deferred tax  (1,970)  265,800 0 0
Real Property Gain Tax  44,737 0 0 0

1,379,924 1,824,514 0 0
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31.	 TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)

	 Tax on each component of other comprehensive income is as follows:

Group
2017

Before tax
RM

Tax effect
RM

After Tax
RM

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to 
profit or loss

Foreign currency translations (9,568) 0  (9,568)

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to 
profit or loss

Foreign currency translations  (14,268) 0  (14,268)

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to 
profit or loss

Gross revaluation increase of properties 1,319,031 (316,568) 1,002,463

32.	 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)	 Basic 

	 Basic earnings per ordinary share for the financial year is calculated by dividing the profit for the financial year 
attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
during the financial year.

Group
2017
RM

2016
RM

Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent 1,603,925  3,665,163

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (unit) 95,926,521  95,926,521

Basic earnings per ordinary share (Sen) 1.67 3.82

(b)	 Diluted 

	 Diluted earnings per ordinary share is the same as basic earnings per share as there is no dilutive potential 
ordinary share.
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33.	 COMMITMENTS	

(a)	 Operating lease commitments

(i)	 The Group as lessee

	 The Group has aggregate future minimum lease commitment as at the end of each reporting period as 
follows:

Group
2017
RM

2016
RM

Not later than one (1) year 415,500 414,700
Later than one (1) year and not later than five (5) years  31,600 416,400

447,100 831,100

(ii)	 The Group as lessor

	 The Group has aggregate future minimum lease receivables as at the end of each reporting period as 
follows:

Group
2017
RM

2016
RM

Not later than one (1) year 204,000 156,000
Later than one (1) year and not later than five (5) years 624,000 624,000
Later than five (5) years  377,000 520,000

1,205,000 1,300,000

(b)	 Capital commitments

Group
2017
RM

2016
RM

Capital expenditure:
Contracted but not provided for: 

Plant and machinery 567,260 0

34.	 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a)	 Identities of related parties

	 Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the 
party or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or 
where the Group and the party are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties 
could be individuals or other entities.

	 The Company has controlling related party relationship with its direct and indirect subsidiaries.
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34.	 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Cont’d)

(b)	 In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group and the 
Company had the following transactions with related parties during the financial year:

Group Company
2017
RM

2016
RM

2017
RM

2016
RM

Subsidiaries:
Management fee received
- Emico Development Sdn. Bhd. 0 0 120,000 120,000
- Emico Asia Sdn. Bhd. 0 0 60,000 120,000

Related parties
Progress claims:
- Frame World Sdn. Bhd. 4,488,296 9,508,252 0 0

Purchases:
- Century Plas Industries Sdn. Bhd.  9,728,943 8,632,726 0 0
- U-Can Marketing Sdn. Bhd. 13,682 1,172 0 0
- Emico (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. 2,830,346 3,033,808 0 0

Sales:
- Century Plas Industries Sdn. Bhd. 6,756,496 6,428,760 0 0
- U-Can Marketing Sdn. Bhd. 20,833 2,919 0 0
- Emico (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. 201,462 195,362 0 0

Rental of machinery received:
- Century Plas Industries Sdn. Bhd. 24,000 24,000 0 0

Rental of premises received:
- Century Plas Industries Sdn. Bhd. 156,000 156,000 0 0

Rental of premises paid and 
payable:

- Beng Choo Marketing Sdn. Bhd. 360,000 360,000 0 0

	 The related party transactions described above were under taken on mutually agreed and negotiated terms.

	 The related parties are companies in which certain Directors of the Group and their family members have significant 
financial and controlling interests.

	 Information regarding outstanding balances arising from related party transactions as at 31 March 2017 are 
disclosed in Notes 14 and 24 to the financial statements.

(c)	 Compensation of key management personnel

	 Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing 
and controlling the activities of the entity, directly and indirectly, including any director (whether executive or 
otherwise) of the Group and the Company. 
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34.	 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Cont’d)

(c)	 Compensation of key management personnel (Cont’d)

Group Company
2017
RM

2016
RM

2017
RM

2016
RM

Short term employee benefits 1,544,134 1,492,092  645,159 619,921
Contributions to defined  

contribution plans 165,920 149,390  66,838 63,620
1,710,054 1,641,482  711,997 683,541

Estimated cash value of benefits-in-
kind provided to Directors 56,850 92,525 0 0

35.	 OPERATING SEGMENTS

	 Emico Holdings Berhad is principally involved in investment holding and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in 
manufacturing, trading of consumable products and property development.

	 Emico Holdings Berhad has arrived at three (3) reportable segments that are organised and managed separately 
according to the nature of products and services, specific expertise and technologies requirements, which requires 
different business and marketing strategies. The reportable segments are summarised as follows:

(i) Consumable products -	 Manufacturing and trading of consumable products

(ii) Property development - 	 Development of land into residential and commercial buildings

(iii) Investment holding

	 The accounting policies of operating segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting 
policies.

	 The Group evaluates performance on the basis of profit or loss from operations before tax.

	 Inter-segment revenue is priced along the same lines as sales to external customers and is eliminated in the consolidated 
financial statements. These policies have been applied consistently throughout the current and previous financial year.

	 Segment assets exclude tax assets.

	 Segment liabilities exclude tax liabilities. 

Consumable 
products

RM

Property 
development

RM

Investment 
holding

RM
Group

RM

2017
Revenue:
Total revenue  58,426,910  11,917,060 180,000  70,523,970
Inter-segment revenue  (60,377) 0  (180,000)  (240,377)
Revenue from external customers  58,366,533  11,917,060 0 70,283,593

Interest income  37,012 51,694 0 88,706
Finance costs  (452,668)  (71,810)  (5)  (524,483)
Net finance expense (415,656)  (20,116) (5)  (435,777)
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35.	 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Cont’d)

Consumable 
products

RM

Property 
development

RM

Investment 
holding

RM
Group

RM

Depreciation and amortisation  (1,618,885)  (312,437)  0  (1,931,322)

Segment profit/(loss) before income tax  3,293,032 554,419  (1,117,419)  2,730,032

Tax expenses 0 0 0  (1,379,924)

Other non-cash items:
- impairment losses on trade and other 

receivables  5,704  17,479 0 23,183
- property, plant and equipment written 

off  6,459 0 0 6,459
Additions to non-current assets other than 

financial instruments and deferred tax 
assets 1,068,593 150,217 0 1,218,810

Segment assets 45,173,593 34,300,403 713,265 80,187,261

Segment liabilities 16,951,481  6,926,863  1,137,274 25,015,618

2016
Revenue:
Total revenue  61,901,098 18,280,350 240,000 80,421,448
Inter-segment revenue (163,341) 0 (240,000)  (403,341)
Revenue from external customers  61,737,757 18,280,350 0  80,018,107

Interest income 107,193 43,841 175 151,209
Finance costs  (474,533) (38,348)  (8)  (512,889)
Net finance (expense)/income  (367,340)  5,493  167  (361,680)

Depreciation and amortisation  (1,748,648) (288,929) 0  (2,037,577)

Segment profit/(loss) before income tax 3,803,391 2,932,315 (865,169)  5,870,537

Tax expenses 0 0  0  (1,824,514)

Other non-cash items:
- impairment losses on trade and other 

receivables  26,145 0 0 26,145
- property, plant and equipment written 

off 0 1 4 5
- loss on disposal of property, plant and 

equipment  (6,500)  (47,517) 0 (54,017)
Additions to non-current assets other than 

financial instruments and deferred tax 
assets  990,951 0 0  990,951

Segment assets 48,099,798  42,371,298 666,730 91,137,826

Segment liabilities 20,118,941 15,283,621 1,047,030 36,449,592
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35.	 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Cont’d)

(a)	 Reconciliations

	 Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities to the Group’s corresponding 
amounts are as follows:

2017
RM

2016
RM

Revenue
Total revenue for reportable segments 70,523,970 80,421,448
Elimination of inter-segment revenue (240,377) (403,341)
Revenue of the Group per consolidated statement of profit or loss 

and other comprehensive income 70,283,593 80,018,107

Profit for the financial year
Total profit for reportable segments  2,730,032 5,870,537
Elimination of inter-segment profits 0 0
Profit before tax 2,730,032  5,870,537
Tax expenses (1,379,924) (1,824,514)
Profit for the financial year 1,350,108 4,046,023

Assets
Total assets for reporting segments 80,187,261 91,137,826
Tax assets 433,076 428,715
Assets of the Group per consolidated statement of financial position  80,620,337  91,566,541

Liabilities
Total liabilities for reporting segments 25,015,618  36,449,592
Tax liabilities 5,022,928 5,875,698
Liabilities of the Group per consolidated statement of financial 

position 30,038,546 42,325,290

(b)	 Geographical information

	 The Group’s manufacturing facilities and sales offices are mainly based in Malaysia.

	 In presenting information on the basis of geographical areas, segment revenue is based on the geographical 
location from where the customers are originated. Segment assets are based on the geographical location of the 
Group’s assets. The non-current assets do not include deferred tax assets.

2017
RM

2016
RM

Revenue from external customers
Malaysia	 29,184,957 36,792,763
Europe 31,482,887 33,963,641
Other countries  9,615,749 9,261,703

70,283,593 80,018,107

Non-current assets
Malaysia 23,668,993 24,363,856
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35.	 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Cont’d)

(c)	 Major customers

	 Revenue from one (1) major customer (2016: one) in the consumable products segment amounted to RM15,189,693 
(2016: RM13,336,422) with revenue more than 10% of the Group’s revenue.

36.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)	 Capital management

	 The Group’s objectives and policies of managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue in its 
operations as going concerns in order to provide fair returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital 
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain the optimal capital structure, the Group may, from time 
to time, adjust/vary the dividend payouts to shareholders, issue new shares, redeem debts or sell assets to reduce 
debts, where necessary.

	 For capital management purposes, the Group considers shareholders’ equity and borrowings to be the key 
components in the Group capital structure. The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. The Group 
includes within net debt, borrowings less deposits with a licensed bank and cash and bank balances. There were 
no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the financial year. The debts-to-equity as at 
31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 were as follows:

Group
2017
RM

2016
RM

Borrowings 8,868,331 11,579,342
Less: 
	 Cash and bank balances (3,771,185) (7,875,916)
	 Deposits with licensed banks (586,286) (721,560)
Net debt 4,510,860 2,981,866

Total capital  42,541,402 40,947,045
Net debt 4,510,860 2,981,866
Equity  47,052,262 43,928,911

Gearing ratio 10% 7%

	 Pursuant to the requirements of Practice Note No. 17/2005 of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, the Group 
is required to maintain a consolidated shareholders’ equity equal to or not less than twenty-five percent (25%) 
of the issued and paid-up capital (excluding treasury shares, if any) and such shareholders’ equity is not less than 
RM40,000,000. The Group has complied with this requirement during the financial year.

	 The Group is not subject to any other externally imposed capital requirements.
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36.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b)	 Financial instruments

Loans and receivables
Group Company

2017
RM

2016
RM

2017
RM

2016
RM

Financial assets
Trade and other receivables 

(excluding deposits and 
prepayment) 13,599,051 15,966,561 7,186,652 8,167,294

Cash and bank balances 4,357,471  8,597,476 140,612 93,155
 17,956,522 24,564,037 7,327,264 8,260,449

Other financial liabilities
Group Company

2017
RM

2016
RM

2017
RM

2016
RM

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables  15,307,990 19,042,346 13,752,131 13,759,828
Borrowings 8,868,331 11,579,342 0 0

24,176,321 30,621,688 13,752,131 13,759,828

(c)	 Methods and assumptions used to estimate fair value

(i)	 Financial instruments that are not carried at fair values and whose carrying amounts are reasonable 
approximation of fair values

	 The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities, such as trade and other receivables, trade 
and other payables and borrowings, are reasonable approximation of fair value, either due to their short 
term nature or that they are floating rate instruments that are re-priced to market interest rates on or near 
the end of the reporting period

	 The carrying amounts of the current portion of loans and borrowings are reasonable approximation of fair 
values due to the insignificant impact of discounting.

	 The fair value of these borrowings is calculated based on the present value of future principal and interest 
cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the end of the reporting period.

(ii)	 Amounts owing by subsidiaries and fixed rate bank loans

	 The fair value of these financial instruments are estimated by discounting expected future cash flows at 
market incremental lending rate for similar types of lending, borrowing or leasing arrangements at the end 
of each reporting period.
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36.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(d)	 Fair value hierarchy (Cont’d)	

	 Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical 
assets or liabilities.

	 Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

	 Fair value of non-derivative financial liabilities, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based 
on the present value of future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the 
end of the reporting period. In respect of the borrowings, the market rate of interest is determined by reference 
to similar borrowing arrangements.

	 Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on 
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

	 There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements during the financial years 
ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016.

37.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

	 The financial risk management objective of the Group is to optimise value creation for shareholders whilst minimising 
the potential adverse impact arising from fluctuations in foreign currency exchange and interest rates and the 
unpredictability of the financial markets.

	 The Group operates within an established risk management framework and clearly defined guidelines that are regularly 
reviewed by the Board of Directors and does not trade in derivative financial instruments. Financial risk management 
is carried out through risk review programmes, internal control systems, insurance programmes and adherence to the 
Group financial risk management policies. 

	 The Group is exposed mainly to credit risk, liquidity and cash flow risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk.
Information on the management of the related exposures is detailed below.

(i)	 Credit risk

	 Cash deposits and trade receivables could give rise to credit risk which requires the loss to be recognised if a 
counter party fails to perform as contracted. The counter parties are major international institutions and reputable 
multinational organisations. It is the Group’s policy to monitor the financial standing of these counter parties on 
an ongoing basis to ensure that the Group is exposed to minimal credit risk.

	 The Group’s primary exposure to credit risk arises through its trade receivables while the Company’s primary 
exposure is through the amounts owing by subsidiaries. The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly 
on credit. The credit period generally range from one (1) month to three (3) months for major customers. Each 
customer has a maximum credit limit and the Group seeks to maintain control over its outstanding receivables 
via a credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior 
management.

	 Exposure to credit risk

	 At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying 
amount of each class of financial assets recognised in the statements of financial position.

	 Credit risk concentration profile

	 The Group determines concentration of credit risk by monitoring the country profile of its trade receivables on an 
ongoing basis. The credit risk concentration profile of the Group’s trade receivables at the end of the reporting 
period are as follows:
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37.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

(i)	 Credit risk (Cont’d)

	 Credit risk concentration profile (Cont’d)

2017 2016
RM % of total RM % of total

By country:
Malaysia 7,450,684 60% 8,931,865 62%
Sweden 2,961,581 24% 2,859,036 20%
Italy  764,104 6% 753,427 5%
Germany 25,188 0% 378,489 3%
China 359,230 3% 325,823 1%
United States of America	 413,887 4% 301,482 2%
Poland	  5,614 0% 221,971 2%
United Kingdom  168,831 1%  110,855 1%
Indonesia 125,445 1% 74,314 1%
Others 167,053 1% 473,521 3%

 12,441,617 100% 14,430,783 100%

	 At the end of the reporting period, approximately:

	 25.9% (2016: 22.3%) of the Group’s trade receivables were due from major customers who are multi-industry 
conglomerates located in Italy and Sweden. 

	
	 19.3% (2016: 14.5%) of the Group’s trade receivables were due from related parties.

	 99.8% (2016: 99.8%) the Company’s other receivables were due from subsidiaries.

	 Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

	 Information regarding trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired is disclosed in Note 14(f) 
to the financial statements. Deposits with licensed banks that are neither past due nor impaired are placed with 
or entered into with reputable financial institutions with high credit ratings and no history of default.

	 Financial assets that are past due but not impaired

	 Information regarding financial assets that are past due but not impaired is disclosed in Note 14(f) to the financial 
statements.

(ii)	 Liquidity and cash flow risk 

	 The Group actively manage its debt maturity profile, operating cash flows and the availability of funding so as 
to ensure that all operating, investing and financing needs are met.  In liquidity risk management strategy, the 
Group measures and forecasts its cash commitments and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed 
adequate to finance the Group’s activities. In addition, the Group strives to maintain available banking facilities at 
a reasonable level to meet its business needs.
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37.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

(ii)	 Liquidity and cash flow risk (Cont’d)

	 The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s liabilities at the end of each 
reporting period based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations.

On demand 
or within 
one year

RM

One to five 
years 
RM

Over five 
years 
RM

Total 
RM

As at 31 March 2017

Group
Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables  15,307,990 0 0 15,307,990
Borrowings  6,650,774 1,892,372  742,597 9,285,743
Total undiscounted financial 

liabilities  21,958,764 1,892,372  742,597 24,593,733

Company
Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 13,752,131 0 0 13,752,131
Total undiscounted financial 

liabilities  13,752,131 0 0 13,752,131

As at 31 March 2016

Group
Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 19,042,346 0 0 19,042,346
Borrowings 7,969,392 2,886,956 843,990 11,700,338
Total undiscounted financial 

liabilities  27,011,738 2,886,956 843,990 30,742,684

Company
Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 13,759,828 0 0 13,759,828
Total undiscounted financial 

liabilities  13,759,828 0 0 13,759,828
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37.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

(iii)	 Interest rate risk 

	 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group’s financial instruments would 
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

	 The Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. 
Interest rate exposure arising from the Group’s borrowings is managed through the use of fixed and floating rates 
debts. The Group monitors the interest rates on borrowings closely to ensure that the borrowings are maintained 
at favourable rates. The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge this risk.

	 Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk

	 As at 31 March 2017, if interest rates at the date had been 50 basis points lower with all other variables held 
constant, post-tax profits for the financial year would have been RM31,472 (2016: RM41,260) higher, arising 
mainly as a result of lower interest expense on variable borrowings. If interest rates had been 50 basis points 
higher, with all other variables held constant, post-tax profits would have been RM31,472 (2016: RM41,260) lower, 
arising mainly as a result of higher interest expense on variable borrowings. Profit is more sensitive to interest rate 
decreases than increases because of borrowings with capped interest rates. The sensitivity is lower in 2017 than in 
2016 because of a decrease in outstanding borrowings that has occurred. The assumed movement in basis points 
for interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market environment.
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37.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

(iv)	 Foreign currency risk

	 Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument would fluctuate 
because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

	 The Group also hold cash and bank balances denominated in foreign currencies for working capital purposes. At 
the end of each reporting period, such foreign currency balances (in United States Dollar, Chinese Renminbi, Thai 
Bath, Euro and Sterling Pound) amounted to RM898,108 (2016: RM3,162,858) for the Group.

	 Transactional currency exposures arise from sales and purchases that are denominated in currency other than 
Ringgit Malaysia. The currency giving rise to this risk is primarily United States Dollar. 

	 During the financial year, the Group obtained a foreign currency forward facility with a bank to manage exposures 
to currency risk for receivables which are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the 
Group. However, there was no foreign currency forward contract outstanding as at 31 March 2017.

	 Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk

	 The following table demonstrates the sensitivity analysis of the Group’s profit net of tax to reasonable possible 
change in the United States Dollar, Chinese Renminbi and Euro exchange rate against the respective functional 
currency of the Group entities, with all other variables held constant.

Group
Profit net of tax
2017
RM

2016
RM

USD/RM - Strengthened 5% 217,015 275,211
- Weakened 5%  (217,015) (275,211)

Chinese Renminbi/RM - Strengthened 5%  (50,932) (50,638)
- Weakened 5%  50,932 50,638

Euro/RM - Strengthened 5% (3,757) 1,190
- Weakened 5%  3,757 (1,190)

38.	 COMPANIES ACT 2016

	 Companies Act, 2016 (“CA2016”) was passed on 4 April 2016 by the Dewan Rakyat (House of Representative) and 
gazetted on 15 September 2016 to replace the Companies Act, 1965. On 26 January 2017, the Minister of Domestic 
Trade, Co-operatives and Consumerism has appointed 31 January 2017 as the date on which CA2016 comes into 
operation except Section 241 and Division 8 of Part III of CA2016.

	 Consequently, the Group and the Company effected the following changes as at 31 January 2017:

	 (a)	Authorised share capital has been removed;
	 (b)	Par or nominal value of ordinary shares have been removed; and
	 (c)	 Balances in the share premium account have been transferred into the share capital account. 
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39.	 SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ON REALISED AND UNREALISED LOSSES

	 The accumulated losses as at the end of the reporting period may be analysed as follows:

Group Company
2017
RM

2016
RM

2017
RM

2016
RM

Total accumulated losses of Emico 
Holdings Berhad and its subsidiaries 

- Realised 20,329,096 (79,164,313) 16,038,637 (81,275,574)
- Unrealised (797,467) (864,371) 0 0

19,531,629 (80,028,684)  16,038,637 (81,275,574)

Add: Consolidation adjustments (6,131,485) 5,491,034 0 0

Total retained earnings/(accumulated 
losses) 13,400,144  (74,537,650) 16,038,637 (81,275,574)
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS 
 AS AT 30 JUNE 2017

Total number of issued shares : 95,926,521
Class of Shares : Ordinary shares
Voting Rights : One (1) vote per ordinary share
No. of Shareholders : 3,274

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS

No. of Shares Held No. of Shareholders
Size of Holdings Quantity % Number %

1                 To     99 745 - 22 0.67
100             To     1,000 650,047 0.68  736 22.48
1,001          To     10,000 7,481,181 7.80  1,518 46.36
10,001        To     100,000 30,391,330 31.68 875 26.73
100,001      To     4,796,325 (*) 51,805,618 54.00  122  3.73
4,796,326 AND ABOVE (**)  5,597,600 5.84 1 0.03
Total 95,926,521 100.00 3,274 100.00

REMARK:  *	 Less than 5% of issued shares
	 	    **	 5% or more of issued shares
			 
	
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS 									       
	

No. of Shares Held
Name Direct % Indirect %

1.	 Lim Poh Leng 12,584,300 * 13.12 14,298,659 ^ 14.91
2.	 Lim Teck Chye 10,847,347 # 11.31 16,035,612 ^ 16.72
3.	 Lim Poh Hoon 112,000 0.12 26,770,959 ^ 27.91
4.	 Lim Teik Hian 52,000 0.06 26,830,959 ^ 27.97

Notes:
*	 Inclusive of shares held by herself and through Alliancegroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd., Affin Hwang Nominees
	 (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd and CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.
#	 Inclusive of shares held by himself and through Alliancegroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd., Affin Hwang Nominees
	 (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd., PM Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. and Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.
^	 Deemed interested via shares held by Beng Choo Marketing Sdn. Bhd. and family members namely, Lim Teik Hian 

(brother), Lim Poh Hoon (sister), Lim Teck Chye (brother) and Lim Poh Leng (sister)

	
DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS

No. of Shares Held
Name Direct % Indirect %

1.	 Lim Teik Hian 52,000 0.06 26,830,959 ^ 27.97
2.	 Lim Teck Chye 10,847,347 # 11.31 16,035,612 ^ 16.72
3.	 Wong Sew Yun 895,859 0.93 - -
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LIST OF TOP 30 SHAREHOLDERS  
AS AT 30 JUNE 2017

(Without Aggregating Securities from Different Securities Accounts Belonging to the Same Person)

Name No. of Shares Percentage

1. Lim Poh Leng 5,597,600 5.84

2. PM Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
- Pledged Securities Account for Lim Teck Chye 4,683,300 4.88

3. Alliancegroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
- Pledged Securities Account for Lim Poh Leng 4,066,800 4.24

4. Alliancegroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
- Pledged Securities Account for Lim Teck Chye 2,630,000 2.74

5. CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
CIMB Bank for Lim Poh Leng 1,997,000 2.08

6. Beng Choo Marketing Sdn Bhd 1,964,212 2.05

7. Chuah Guan Leong 1,442,000 1.50

8. Chan Kok Wah 1,305,000 1.36

9. Lim Teck Chye 1,225,100 1.28

10. Lim Teck Chye 1,211,030 1.26

11. Wong Sew Yun 895,859 0.93

12. Affin Hwang Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
- Pledged Securities Account for Lim Poh Leng 850,900 0.89

13. Ng Jeh Yeong 830,000 0.87

14. Low Soo Ha @ Low Cheen Chong 750,000 0.78

15. Goh Chew Ling 741,400 0.77

16. RHB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
- Pledged Securities Account for Alwin Khoo Yi P’ern 710,000 0.74

17. Chaw Huan Loong 692,800 0.72

18. Mercsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
- Pledged Securities Account for Beng Choo Marketing Sdn Bhd 692,600 0.72

19. Affin Hwang Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
- Pledged Securities Account for Lim Teck Chye 684,000 0.71

20. Kenanga Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
- Pledged Securities Account for Julian Cheah Wai Meng 610,000 0.64

21. Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
- Exempt An for OCBC Securities Private Limited (Client A/C -R ES) 601,000 0.63



118 EMICO HOLDINGS BERHAD (230326-D)

Name No. of Shares Percentage

22. Amsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
- Pledged Securities Account for Jega Devan A/L M Nadchatiram 600,000 0.63

23. Alwin Khoo Yi P’ern 543,000 0.57

24. Mercury Industries Berhad 510,000 0.53

25. Aw Yoong Sau Kuan 500,000 0.52

26. JF Apex Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
- Pledged Securities Account for Hon Meng Heng 500,000 0.52

27. Law Kok Wah 500,000 0.52

28. Wong Kuai Kang @ Wong Cho Kan 497,000 0.52

29. Beng Choo Marketing Sdn Bhd 437,000 0.46

30. CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
- Pledged Securities Account for Tan Young Tat 435,000 0.45

Total 38,702,601 40.35

LIST OF TOP 30 SHAREHOLDERS (Cont’d)
AS AT 30 JUNE 2017
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LIST OF PROPERTIES
AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Location Tenure
Description/ 
Existing Use

Land Area 
(sq ft)

Built-up 
Area 
(sq ft)

Age of 
Building 
(Years)

Net Book 
Value 

RM’000
Acquisition/

Revaluation *

Plot 18 & 19 
Kawasan Perindustrian 
Bayan Lepas, Mukim 12 
Daerah Barat Daya, 
Pulau Pinang

60-years
Leasehold
Expiring 2046 
and 2047 
respectively

Land and 
factory 
building, 
warehouse 
and office for 
industrial use 79,096 147,214 25 to 32 17,484 2016*

Unit 2-5-9
Harbour Trade Centre,
Lebuh Macallum, 
Pulau Pinang

99-years
Leasehold
Expiring 2089

Office unit
for rental  - 2,031 22 178 1992

Geran 127391 & 127392
Bandar Sungai Petani,
Daerah Kuala Muda, 
Kedah Freehold

3 storey
office 
building 2,800 7,394 9 1,068 2016*

Taman Batik 
Bandar Sungai Petani, 
Daerah Kuala Muda, 
Kedah Freehold

Land under 
development 93,876 - -  287 1996

Bandar Mutiara
Bandar Sungai Petani,
Daerah Kuala Muda, 
Kedah Freehold

Land under 
development 
and held for 
development 1,027,824 - - 3,028 1996

Taman Simfoni
Bandar Kuah, 
Daerah Langkawi, Kedah

99 years
Leasehold
Expiring 2112

Land under 
development 
and held for 
development 615,157 - - 1,436 1996
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 25th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company will be held at The Conference 
Room of Emico Holdings Berhad, 18 Lebuhraya Kampung Jawa, 11900 Bayan Lepas, Penang on Friday, 18 August 2017 at 
11.00 a.m. for the following purposes:

AGENDA

As Ordinary Business:
1. To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2017 together 

with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.
Please refer to 

Note 6

2. To approve the payment of Directors’ Fees for the financial year ended 31 March 2017. Resolution 1

3. To approve the payment of Directors’ Benefits up to an amount not exceeding RM30,000.00 for 
the period from 31 January 2017 until the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company. 

Resolution 2

4. To re-appoint Mr. Ng Chee Kong as a director of the Company. Resolution 3
Please refer to 

Note 7 

5. To re-elect Mr. Lim Teik Hian, a director who retires by rotation in accordance with Article 80 of the 
Company’s Constitution and who, being eligible, offers himself for re-election. 

Resolution 4

6. To re-elect Mr. Wong Sew Yun, a director who retires by rotation in accordance with Article 80 of 
the Company’s Constitution and who, being eligible, offers himself for re-election.

Resolution 5

7. To re-appoint Messrs. BDO as auditors of the Company to hold office until the conclusion of next 
AGM of the Company and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

Resolution 6 

As Special Business :
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications the following resolutions as 
Ordinary Resolutions :

8. PROPOSED RENEWAL OF GENERAL MANDATE FOR DIRECTORS TO ALLOT ISSUE NEW 
SHARES IN THE COMPANY

Resolution 7

“THAT, subject always to the Companies Act, 2016, the Constitution of the Company, the Listing 
Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) and the regulations, 
guidelines and  practice notes issued from time to time by Bursa Securities or any other regulatory 
authorities, approval be and is hereby given for the Directors of the Company to allot and issue 
new shares in the Company at any time and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes 
as the Directors may deem fit, provided that the aggregate number of shares to be issued does 
not exceed 10% of the total number of issued shares of the Company and that the approval 
conferred by this resolution shall take effect immediately upon the passing of this resolution and 
shall continue to be in force until:
(a)	 the conclusion of the AGM of the Company held next after the approval was given;

(b)	 the expiration of the period within which the next AGM of the Company is required to be 
held after the approval was given, 

whichever is earlier; or

(c)	 revoked or varied at any time by an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders in a 
general meeting,

whichever is the earlier; 
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (Cont’d)

8. PROPOSED RENEWAL OF GENERAL MANDATE FOR DIRECTORS TO ALLOT ISSUE NEW 
SHARES IN THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

Resolution 7

THAT, the Directors of the Company be hereby authorised to enter into such transactions, 
arrangements, agreements and documents as are necessary with full power to assent to any 
conditions, modifications, variations and/or amendments as may be required by the relevant 
authorities or as the Directors, in their absolute discretion deem fit and in the best interest of the 
Company.

AND THAT, any Executive Director and/or the Secretary of the Company be hereby authorised to 
obtain the approval from Bursa Securities for the listing and quotation of the additional shares to 
be issued and to do all such acts and things as are necessary to give full effect to such transactions 
as authorised by this resolution.”

9. PROPOSED RENEWAL OF SHAREHOLDERS’ MANDATE AND PROPOSED NEW 
SHAREHOLDERS’ MANDATE FOR RECURRENT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS OF A 
REVENUE OR TRADING NATURE, COLLECTIVELY PROPOSED SHAREHOLDERS MANDATE

Resolution 8

“THAT, subject always to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2016, the Constitution of the 
Company, the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa 
Securities”) and/or any other regulatory authorities, the authority be and is hereby given for the 
Company and its subsidiaries to enter into recurrent related party transactions of a revenue or 
trading nature as set out in the circular to shareholders in relation to the Proposed Shareholders’ 
Mandate provided that such transactions are in the ordinary course of business which are necessary 
for the day-to-day operations on terms not more favourable to the related parties than those 
generally available to the public and are not to the detriment of the minority shareholders of the 
Company and that such authority shall continue to be in force until:

(a) the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company following the AGM at which the Proposed 
Shareholders’ Mandate is passed, at which time it will lapse, unless by an ordinary resolution 
passed at the AGM, the authority is renewed;

(b) the expiration of the period within which the next AGM of the Company is required to be 
held after the approval was given,

(c) revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company in 
a general meeting,

whichever is the earlier; 

AND THAT, the Executive Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to complete 
and do all such acts and things (including executing any documents as may be required) to give 
full effect to such transactions authorised by this resolution.

10. PROPOSED CONTINUATION OF MR. WONG SEW YUN IN OFFICE AS INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Resolution 9

“THAT authority be and is hereby given to Mr. Wong Sew Yun who had served as an Independent 
Non-Executive Director of the Company for a cumulative term of more than nine (9) years to 
continue to act as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company and to hold office 
until the next conclusion of AGM of the Company.” 

11. PROPOSED CONTINUATION OF MR. NG CHEE KONG IN OFFICE AS INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Resolution 10

“THAT authority be and is hereby given to Mr. Ng Chee Kong who had served as an Independent 
Non-Executive Director of the Company for a cumulative term of more than nine (9) years to 
continue to act as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company and to hold office until 
the next conclusion of AGM of the Company.”
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (Cont’d)

12. PROPOSED CONTINUATION OF MR. WONG THAI SUN IN OFFICE AS INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Resolution 11

“THAT authority be and is hereby given to Mr. Wong Thai Sun who had served as an Independent 
Non-Executive Director of the Company for a cumulative term of more than nine (9) years to 
continue to act as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company and to hold office until 
the next conclusion of AGM of the Company.”

13. To transact any other business of which due notice shall have been given in accordance with the 
Company’s Constitution and the Companies Act, 2016.

FURTHER NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT for the purpose of determining a member who shall be entitled to attend the 
25th AGM, the Company shall be requesting Bursa Malaysia Depository Sdn. Bhd. to issue a General Meeting Record of 
Depositors as at 14 August 2017. Only a depositor whose name appears on the Record of Depositors as at 14 August 2017 
shall be entitled to attend the AGM or appoint proxies to attend and/or vote on his/her behalf.

By Order of the Board

Lee Peng Loon (MACS 01258)
P’NG CHIEW KEEM (MAICSA 7026443)
Secretaries

Penang
Date :  27 July 2017

NOTES ON APPOINTMENT OF PROXY

1. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company.

2. For a proxy to be valid, the Proxy Form duly completed must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, 
51-21-A Menara BHL Bank, Jalan Sultan Ahmad Shah, 10050 Penang not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time 
appointed for holding the meeting.

3. A member shall be entitled to appoint one (1) proxy to attend and vote instead of him at the same meeting and where 
a member appoints more than one (1) proxy to vote at the same meeting, such appointment shall be invalid unless he 
specifies the proportion of his shareholding to be represented by each proxy.

4. Where a member is an Exempt Authorised Nominee which holds ordinary shares of the Company for multiple beneficial 
owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies it may appoint in 
respect of each omnibus account it holds.

5. In the case of a corporate members, the Proxy Form must be executed under the corporation’s common seal or under 
the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.

EXPLANATORY NOTE ON ORDINARY BUSINESS

6. The Audited Financial Statements in Agenda 1 had been approved by the Board pursuant to Section 251(1) of the 
Companies Act 2016. Hence, this agenda does not require formal approval of shareholders of the Company and is 
meant for discussion pursuant to Section 248(2) of the Companies Act 2016.

7. There is no age limit to act as director in a public company pursuant to the Companies Act 2016 which came in force 
on 31 January 2017. In this respect, Mr. Ng Chee Kong aged above 70 who was re-appointed pursuant to Section 
129 of the Companies Act, 1965 at the last AGM of the Company, his term in office will end at the conclusion of the 
forthcoming 25th AGM of the Company to be held on 18 August 2017.

The proposed Resolution 3, if passed, will enable Mr. Ng Chee Kong, who had offered himself for re-appointment to 
continue to act as a director of the Company and he shall be subject to retirement by rotation at a later date.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (Cont’d)

EXPLANATORY NOTES ON SPECIAL BUSINESS

8. The proposed Resolution 7 is to seek a renewal of general mandate for the Directors of the Company to allot and 
issue new shares in the Company up to an amount not exceeding 10% of the total number of issued shares of the 
Company for the time being for such purposes as the Directors consider will be in the best interest of the Company. 
This mandate, unless revoked or varied by the shareholders of the Company in a general meeting will expire at the 
conclusion of the next AGM.

The proposed renewal of general mandate for issuance of shares will provide flexibility to the Company for any 
possible fund raising activities, including but not limited to further placing of shares for the purpose of funding future 
investment, working capital and/or acquisition.

As at the date of this notice, the Directors have not issued any shares pursuant to the general mandate granted at the 
last AGM of the Company.

9. The proposed Resolution 8 is to seek of shareholders’ mandate for the Company and/or its subsidiaries to enter into 
recurrent transactions involving the interests of related parties, which are of a revenue or trading nature and necessary 
for the Group’s day-to-day operations, subject to the transactions being carried out in the ordinary course of business 
and on terms not to the detriment of minority shareholders of the Company. Further information of the Proposed 
Shareholders’ Mandate is set out in the Circular to Shareholders dated 27 July 2017 which has been dispatched 
together with the Company’s Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 March 2017 (“AR 2017”). 

10. The proposed Resolution 9, 10 and 11 are to seek the shareholders approval for the existing Independent Non-
Executive Directors who had served more than (9) years to be retained and continued to act as Independent Non-
Executive Directors to fulfil the requirements of Paragraph 15.02 of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa 
Malaysia Securities Berhad and to be in line with the recommendation 3.3 of the Malaysian Code of Corporate 
Governance 2012. The details of justification are set out in the Page 24 to 35 the Company’s AR 2017.

11. Annual Report
The AR 2017 is in CD-ROM format. Printed copy of the AR 2017 shall be provided to the shareholder upon request within 
four (4) market days from the date of receipt of the verbal or written request. The AR 2017 can also be downloaded 
from the Company’s website at www.emico.com.my.

Shareholders who wish to receive the printed AR 2017, kindly contact Encik Rahimy Safary Bin Yahaya at telephone no. 
03-27839299 or email your request to Rahimy.Safary@my.tricorglobal.com.

Statement Accompanying Notice of Annual General Meeting
(PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH 8.27(2) OF MAIN MARKET LISTING REQUIREMENTS OF BURSA SECURITIES)

1.	 No individuals are standing for election as Directors at the forthcoming 25th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

2.	 The profiles of the Directors who are standing for re-election as in Agenda 5 and 6 of the Notice of the 25th Annual 
General Meeting of the Company are set out in the Board of Directors’ Profile section of this Annual Report.

3.	 The details of the Directors’ interests in the securities of the Company as at 30 June 2017 are set out in the Analysis of 
Shareholdings section of this Annual Report.

4.	 The Resolution 7 tabled under Special Business as per the Notice of 25th Annual General Meeting of the Company 
dated 27 July 2017 is a renewal of general mandate granted by shareholders of the Company at the last Annual General 
Meeting held on 19 August 2016.

	 The proposed renewal of general mandate for issuance of shares will provide flexibility to the Company for any possible 
fund raising activities, including but not limited to further placing of shares for the purpose of funding future investment, 
working capital and/or acquisition.

	 As at the date of notice of meeting, the Directors have not issued any shares pursuant to the general mandate granted 
at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company.
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PROXY FORM CDS Account No.

For appointment of two(2) proxies,
percentage of shareholdings to be

represented by the proxies:
No. of Shares %

Proxy 1
Proxy 2

100

EMICO HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Company No. 230326-D)
Incorporated in Malaysia

*I/We _________________________________________________________________________________________________________

(*I/C No. / Passport No. / Company No. ______________________________) of _________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________ being a *member/members of the abovenamed

 Company, hereby appoint ______________________________________________________________________________________

 (*I/C No. / Passport No. _____________________________________________) of_________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________or failing whom, the Chairman of the meeting 
as *my/our proxy to vote for *me/us on *my/our behalf at the 25th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at 
The Conference Room of Emico Holdings Berhad, 18 Lebuhraya Kampung Jawa, 11900 Bayan Lepas, Penang on Friday, 18 
August 2017 at 11.00 a.m., and at any adjournment thereof.

NO. RESOLUTIONS FOR AGAINST
1 To approve the payment of Directors’ Fees for the financial year ended 31 March 2017. 
2 To approve the payment of Directors’ Benefits.
3 To re-appoint Mr. Ng Chee Kong as a Director of the Company.
4 To re-elect Mr. Lim Teik Hian as a Director of the Company.
5 To re-elect Mr. Wong Sew Yun as a Director of the Company. 
6 To re-appoint BDO as auditors of the Company.
7 To authorise the directors to allot and issue new shares in the Company.
8 To obtain a renewal and new shareholders’ mandate for recurrent related party transactions. 
9 To retain Mr. Wong Sew Yun as an Independent Non-Executive Director.
10 To retain Mr. Ng Chee Kong as an Independent Non-Executive Director.
11 To retain Mr. Wong Thai Sun as an Independent Non-Executive Director.

Please indicate with an “x” in the appropriate spaces provided above on how you wish your vote to be cast. If no specific 
direction as to voting is given, the proxy may vote as he thinks fit.

Signed this ______________ day of ______________ 2017.

No. of shares held

____________________________________
Signature(s)/Common Seal of member(s)

Notes
1.	 A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company.
2. 	 For a proxy to be valid, this form,  duly completed must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, 51-

21-A Menara BHL Bank, Jalan Sultan Ahmad Shah, 10050 Penang not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time 
appointed for holding the meeting.

3. 	 A member shall be entitled to appoint one (1) proxy to attend and vote instead of him at the same meeting and where 
a member appoints more than one (1) proxy to vote at the same meeting, such appointment shall be invalid unless he 
specifies the proportion of his shareholding to be represented by each proxy.

4. 	 Where a member is an Exempt Authorised Nominee which holds ordinary shares of the Company for multiple beneficial 
owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies it may appoint in 
respect of each omnibus account it holds.

5. 	 In the case of a corporate member, this form must be executed under the corporation’s common seal or under the hand 
of an officer or attorney duly authorised.

6.	 In respect of deposited securities, only a depositor whose name appear on the Record of Depositors on 14 August 2017 
shall be eligible to attend the meeting or appoint proxies to attend and/or vote on his/her behalf.

*strike out whichever is not desired.
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The Company Secretary 
EMICO Holdings Berhad 
51-21-A Menara BHL Bank
Jalan Sultan Ahmad Shah
10050 Penang

STAMP
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